

AGENDA

SPC ON COMMUNITY AND PROTECTIVE SERVICES

April 14, 2021, 9:30 AM IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER

Members

Councillor G-C. Carra, Chair Councillor E. Woolley, Vice-Chair Councillor G. Chahal Councillor S. Chu Councillor J. Farkas Councillor S. Keating Councillor J. Magliocca Mayor N. Nenshi, Ex-Officio

SPECIAL NOTES:

Public are encouraged to follow Council and Committee meetings using the live stream <u>www.calgary.ca/watchlive</u>

Public wishing to make a written submission and/or request to speak may do so using the public submission form at the following link: <u>Public Submission Form</u>

Members may be participating remotely.

- 1. CALL TO ORDER
- 2. OPENING REMARKS
- 3. CONFIRMATION OF AGENDA
- 4. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
 - 4.1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Standing Policy Committee on Community and Protective Services, 2021 March 10
- 5. CONSENT AGENDA

- 5.1. DEFERRALS AND PROCEDURAL REQUESTS None
- 5.2. BRIEFINGS None
- 6. <u>POSTPONED REPORTS</u> (including related/supplemental reports)

None

7. ITEMS FROM OFFICERS, ADMINISTRATION AND COMMITTEES

- 7.1. Community-Based Public Safety Task Force: Creating Safe and Connected Communities, CPS2021-0540
- 7.2. 2020 Calgary Combative Sports Commission Annual Report, CPS2021-0570

8. ITEMS DIRECTLY TO COMMITTEE

- 8.1. REFERRED REPORTS None
- 8.2. NOTICE(S) OF MOTION None
- 9. URGENT BUSINESS

10. CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

- 10.1. ITEMS FROM OFFICERS, ADMINISTRATION AND COMMITTEES None
- 10.2. URGENT BUSINESS
- 11. ADJOURNMENT



MINUTES

SPC ON COMMUNITY AND PROTECTIVE SERVICES

March 10, 2021, 9:30 AM IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER

- PRESENT: Councillor G-C. Carra, Chair Councillor E. Woolley, Vice-Chair (Remote Participation) Councillor G. Chahal (Remote Participation) Councillor S. Chu (Remote Participation) Councillor J. Farkas (Remote Participation) Councillor S. Keating (Remote Participation) Councillor J. Magliocca (Remote Participation)
- ALSO PRESENT: A/General Manager K. Black (Remote Participation) Legislative Advisor G. Chaudhary Legislative Advisor J. Palaschuk
- 1. CALL TO ORDER

Councillor Carra called the Meeting to order at 9:31 a.m.

2. <u>OPENING REMARKS</u>

ROLL

Councillor Carra provided opening remarks and a traditional land acknowledgment.

Councillor Woolley, Councillor Magliocca, Councillor Keating, Councillor Farkas, Councillor Chu, Councillor Chahal, and Councillor Carra

3. CONFIRMATION OF AGENDA

Moved by Councillor Woolley

That the Agenda for the 2021 March 10 Regular Meeting of the Standing Policy Committee on Community and Protective Services be confirmed.

MOTION CARRIED

4. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

4.1 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Standing Policy Committee on Community and Protective Services, 2021 February 10

Moved by Councillor Woolley

That the Minutes of the 2021 February 10 Regular Meeting of the SPC on Community and Protective Services be confirmed.

MOTION CARRIED

Councillor Carra introduced a group of grade 6 students from Briar Hill School in Ward 7, along with their teacher.

5. <u>CONSENT AGENDA</u>

Moved by Councillor Woolley

That the Consent Agenda be approved as follows:

5.1 DEFERRALS AND PROCEDURAL REQUESTS

None

- 5.2 BRIEFINGS
 - 5.2.1 2021 SPC on CPS Workplan Q1 Update 082021-0369

MOTION CARRIED

6. <u>POSTPONED REPORTS</u>

0367:

None

7. ITEMS FROM OFFICERS, ADMINISTRATION AND COMMITTEES

7.1 Livery Transport Bylaw Review, CPS2021-0367

The following documents were distributed with respect to Report CPS2021-0367:

- A presentation entitled "Livery Transport Bylaw Review, CPS2021-0367";
- (A package of public submissions

The following speakers addressed Committee with respect to Report CPS2021-

- 1. Yanique Williams, Uber Canada
 - . Jeffrey Garland, Associated Cab Calgary
- 3. Kurt Enders, The Checker Transportation Group
- 4. John Bliss

Moved by Councillor Woolley

That with respect to Report CPS2021-0367, the following be approved:

That the Standing Policy Committee on Community and Protective Services recommend that Council give three readings to the proposed Livery Transport Bylaw (Attachment 2) to replace Livery Transport Bylaw 6M2007.

MOTION CARRIED

7.2 Proposed 2021 Special Tax Bylaw to Support the Enhanced Landscape Maintenance Program, CPS2021-0265

Moved by Councillor Chu

That with respect to Report CPS2021-0265, the following be approved:

That the Standing Policy Committee on Community and Protective Services recommend that Council give three readings to the proposed 2021 Special Tax Bylaw (Attachment 2).

For: (6): Councillor Carra, Councillor Chahal, Councillor Chu, Councillor Farkas, Councillor Keating, and Councillor Magliocca

Against: (1): Councillor Woolley

MOTIÓN CARRIED

8. ITEMS DIRECTLY TO COMMITTEE

8.1 REFERRED REPORTS

None

8.2 NOTICE(S) OF MOTION

None

9. URGENT BUSINESS

None

- 10. CONFIDENTIAL TEMS
 - 10.1 ITEMS FROM OFFICERS, ADMINISTRATION AND COMMITTEES

10.2 URGENT BUSINESS

None 11. ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Councitior Woolley

That this meeting adjourn at 11:22 a.m.

MOTION CARRIED

The following items have been forwarded on to the 2021 March 22 Combined Meeting of Council:

ITEMS FROM OFFICERS, ADMINISTRATION AND COMMITTEES

- Livery Transport Bylaw Review, CPS2021-0367
- Proposed 2021 Special Tax Bylaw to Support the Enhanced Landscape Maintenance Program, CPS2021-0265

The next Regular Meeting of the Standing Policy Committee on Community and Protective Services is scheduled to be held on 2021 April 14 at 9:30 a.m.

CONFIRMED BY COMMITTEE ON



ISC: UNRESTRICTED CPS2021-0540 Page 1 of 4

Community-Based Public Safety Task Force: Creating Safe and Connected Communities

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Standing Policy Committee on Community and Protective Services recommend that Council:

- 1. Endorse the proposed actions of the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force, and
- 2. Conclude the work of the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force and thank the members for their contribution.

HIGHLIGHTS

- The Community-Based Public Safety Task Force (Task Force) brought together a coalition of partners to focus their diverse perspectives on the complex issue of urban violence and to identify tangible actions that are aligned with the needs of communities.
- Task Force proposed actions rely on anticipated funding dedicated to anti-gang programming from Public Safety Canada. The actions focus on sharing feedback from community engagement, applying for the anticipated federal funding for prevention of gang-related violence, and coordinating stakeholders to identify and support priority program needs related to at-risk and gang-involved populations.
- The Task Force was an early initiative focused on improving community safety in Calgary and has since become part of a landscape including the Anti-Racism Action Committee, the Community Action on Mental Health and Addiction Strategy, and the Community Safety Investment Framework. Task Force recommendations for action will coordinate with these initiatives to help address the root causes of gang-related violence in Calgary.
- What does this mean to Calgarians? Community perceptions of public safety have been impacted by a rise in offences involving firearms. Task Force recommendations for action support a community-driven and community-owned approach to addressing concerns around urban violence.
- Why does it matter? The Task Force recommendation to apply for anticipated federal grants from Public Safety Canada will support better coordination and improve navigation and access for services targeted to at-risk and gang-involved population, creating safe and connected communities.
- On 2020 February 3, Council directed Administration to create a Community-Based Public Safety Task Force and report back with best advice and recommendations addressing community concerns around gun and gang violence.
- Strategic Alignment to Council's Citizen Priorities: A city of safe and inspiring neighbourhoods
- Background and Previous Council Direction are included as Attachment 1.

DISCUSSION

The Community-Based Public Safety Task Force (Task Force) was created to provide a foundation for a community-driven and community-owned collaborative approach to create safe and connected communities. The Task Force was composed of a diverse group of experts and professionals from various fields, including representatives from all orders of government, the Calgary Police Commission, the Calgary Police Service, public education, academia, local

Community-Based Public Safety Task Force: Creating Safe and Connected Communities

service agencies and community leaders. The mandate of the Task Force was to review local and national programs and engage community members to understand which services are effective, and identify gaps, challenges and issues with existing programs. Research and public engagement were also used by Task Force members to provide Council with actionable recommendations. Task Force findings and recommendations for action are detailed in Community-Based Public Safety Task Force: Creating Safe and Connected Communities included as Attachment 2.

Voices of the Community

Recognizing that the best solutions to community concerns about public safety will be collaborative and inclusive, the Task Force engaged a diverse cross-section of Calgarians to better understand those concerns and learn from the lived experience of those affected by urban violence. Some key themes resulting from the engagement were the need for flexible youth programming tailored to community needs, culturally specific services that recognize the requirements of different ethno-cultural groups, and the need for consistent funding sources for important programs that support the community.

Realities & Responses

Existing gang prevention, intervention and suppression programs in Calgary and other relevant jurisdictions were reviewed, with a specific focus on at-risk or gang-involved populations. The analysis identified a number of gang prevention and early-intervention programs in Calgary that help improve outcomes for at-risk individuals and their families. Program and service gaps included opportunities to enhance system navigation and coordination, and a need for formal support to parents and caregivers. Gang-exiting programs and street outreach for gang-involved individuals were considered by the Task Force to be inadequate.

Recommendations for Action

Based on community input and results of the program review, the Task Force is proposing the following actions toward creating safe and connected communities:

- 1. **Share, Monitor and Advocate** Valuable insights gained by the Task Force that are outside its scope will be consolidated and shared with appropriate organizations to action, supporting alignment with existing initiatives. Progress on shared feedback will be monitored by City Administration and continued advocacy to the Government of Canada on issues related to urban violence is encouraged.
- 2. Apply for and Align Funding It is anticipated that Public Safety Canada will be announcing five years of dedicated funding to deter gun crime and support anti-gang programming and provide details on funding distribution and processes in the 2021 Federal Budget. Funding is foundational to proceeding with Task Force recommendations for action. Administration should apply for anticipated funding for community proposals that align with the framework criteria to support Calgary-based solutions specific to gang and gun violence.
- Coordinate and Improve Navigation and Access The City should support community stakeholders in identifying and prioritizing needs related to at-risk and ganginvolved populations. Initiatives need to be community-built and culturally appropriate,

Community-Based Public Safety Task Force: Creating Safe and Connected Communities

ensuring coordination with existing initiatives that address the root causes of urban violence. This work will involve identifying barriers around navigating gang-specific programming and improving access for those at-risk or involved in gang activity. Community-built initiatives will coordinate with existing City initiatives including the Anti-Racism Action Committee, the Community Action on Mental Health and Addiction Strategy, and the Community Safety Investment Framework, to advance The City's overarching commitment to community safety.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION (EXTERNAL)

- Public Engagement was undertaken
- Public Communication or Engagement was not required
- Public/Stakeholders were informed
- Stakeholder dialogue/relations were undertaken

In-person and virtual engagement sessions were conducted throughout 2020 with 15 different groups including community associations, ethno-cultural groups, education stakeholders, and individuals with lived experience of urban violence. The Task Force launched an on-line citizen survey in 2020 November. The survey sought input on perceptions of the biggest public safety issues in local communities and asked for suggestions on possible solutions.

IMPLICATIONS

Social

The Task Force recommendations for action support the Social Wellbeing Policy principle of prevention by supporting safe and connected communities. Conducting work to understand needs and priorities in relation to at-risk and gang-involved populations will position The City to maximize anticipated Public Safety Canada funding to support programs within Calgary.

Environmental

The natural and built environment impacts and is impacted by community safety.

Economic

Urban violence results in economic impacts for individuals, families and communities. Access to federal funding for more culturally appropriate and gang-exiting programs can reduce spending on touch points to the justice system and related social services.

Service and Financial Implications

No anticipated financial impact

The recommendations of the Task Force will require significant resources. Administration is anticipating Public Safety Canada funding to enable this work to advance.

Community-Based Public Safety Task Force: Creating Safe and Connected Communities

RISK

Actions identified by the Task Force rely on a portion of anticipated funding of \$250 million over five years from Public Safety Canada for municipalities, community groups and Indigenous communities to deliver anti-gang programming. If this funding is not announced in 2021 April or is less than anticipated, capacity to address the identified actions will be compromised. Administration will monitor the announcement of federal funding and adjust actions, if required.

ATTACHMENTS

- 1. Previous Council Direction, Background
- 2. Community-Based Public Safety Task Force: Creating Safe and Connected Communities
- 3. Public Submission

Department Circulation

General Manager/Director	Department	Approve/Consult/Inform
Katie Black	Community Services	Inform
Chris Arthurs	Deputy City Manager's Office	Inform

Background & Previous Council Direction

The Community-Based Public Safety Task Force was formed to address community concerns around public safety as a result of increasing gang and gun violence.

Context

On 2020 February 3, Council approved Notice of Motion Community-Based Public Safety Task Force PFC2020-0120 directing Administration to create a Community-Based Public Safety Task Force and report back with best advice and recommendations addressing community concerns around gun and gang violence. Council also directed Administration to prepare a briefing with a Terms of Reference.

On 2020 March 16, Council received Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Terms of Reference briefing C2020-0362, including membership drawn from a broad base of community stakeholders.

On 2020 June 15 Council approved Notice of Motion Calgary's Commitment to Anti-Racism C2020-0715 that underscored the importance of the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force engaging with racialized communities as part of their work.





Community-Based Public Safety Task Force

Creating Safe and Connected Communities

In 2005, Calgary adopted its 100-year vision, which reads as follows:

Calgary: a great place to make a living, a great place to make a life.

For thousands of years, people have met at the confluence of two vital rivers to imagine and realize their futures. Together, we have built a city of energy, born of a powerful convergence of people, ideas and place. Together, we continue to imagine a Calgary and a community where:

We are each **connected** to one another. Our diverse skills and heritage interweave to create a resilient communal fabric, while our collective spirit generates opportunity, prosperity and choice for all of us.

We are each **connected** to our places. We treasure and protect our natural environment. Magnificent mountain vistas and boundless prairie skies inspire each of us to build spaces worthy of our surroundings.

We are each **connected** to our communities. Whether social, cultural or physical, these communities are mixed, safe and just. They welcome meaningful participation from everyone, and people move freely between them.

We are each **connected** beyond our boundaries. We understand our impact upon and responsibility to others. Our talent and caring, combined with a truly Canadian sense of citizenship, make positive change across Alberta, throughout Canada and around the world.



We would like to acknowledge and thank all participants in the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force and community members that shared their expert knowledge and lived experiences in relation to gun and gang violence to help inform the work of the Task Force. This report was prepared based on information gathered through Task Force meetings, presentations from community and academia, engagement with community members connected with at-risk youth and gang-involved individuals, and an online citizen survey. Best efforts have been made to fully represent what was heard by both Task Force and community members, acknowledging the complexity and far-reaching impacts of gun and gang violence.



Land Acknowledgement

In the spirit of respect and truth, we acknowledge the original inhabitants of this land that Niitsitapi have called Moh'kinsstis since time immemorial. We honour the signatories of Treaty 7: the Blackfoot Confederacy, including the Siksika, Kainai, and Piikani nations, the Iyarhe Nakoda of the Chiniki, Wesley and Bearspaw nations, and the Tsuut'ina nation. We acknowledge the members of the Métis community and specifically, the Métis Nation of Alberta Region Three. In the spirit of reconciliation and because we are all treaty people, we also acknowledge all Calgarians who make our homes in the traditional Treaty 7 territory of Southern Alberta.



Table of Contents

Executive Summary	1
1.0 Introduction	2
1.1 Background	2
1.2 Purpose and Structure of Report	3
1.3 Strategic Framework	4
1.4 Current Landscape	5
2.0 Voices of the Community	7
2.1 Community Engagement	7
2.2 Public Engagement	10
3.0 Realities & Responses	13
3.1 Programs and Services in Calgary	
3.2 Programs in Other Jurisdictions	
3.3 Gap Analysis	20
4.0 Recommendations for Action	
Action 1: Share, Monitor and Advocate	
Action 2: Apply for and Align Funding	25
Action 3: Coordinate and Improve Navigation and Access	25
4.1 Timeline for Action	26
Appendix 1: Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Notice of Motion	27
Appendix 2: Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Terms of Reference	29
Appendix 3: Task Force Members	33
Appendix 4: Sample of Additional Programs and Services in Calgary	39
Appendix 5: Stakeholder Report Back: What We Heard	42
Appendix 6: Task Force Themes that Informed Recommendations	50
Appendix 7: Additional Themes for Task Force Member Agencies	52
Appendix 8: Resources Consulted	57

Executive Summary

On 2020 February 3, Council unanimously approved Notice of Motion PFC2020-0120 initiating the formation of a Community-Based Public Safety Task Force (the Task Force) to identify and address community concerns around escalating urban violence in Calgary, with a focus on gang and gun violence. The Task Force undertook extensive community and public engagement and reviewed local and national gang prevention, early-intervention and exiting programs to understand which services are effective, and identify gaps, challenges and issues with existing programs. This report presents the findings and recommendations for action from the Task Force.

While there are many gang prevention and early-intervention programs available in Calgary, the Task Force heard from the community that barriers exist around accessing and navigating services for certain population groups, as well as through life stages. Significant programming gaps were identified in the areas of parenting skills development, gang exiting/re-integration and street outreach focused on gang-involved individuals. There is also a need for more culturally appropriate programming options, more input required from the community and those with lived experience on program design and evaluation, and greater support for advocacy-focused intiatives that address the experience of inequality that disproportionately impacts members of the Black, Indigenous and People of Colour (BIPOC) community. A lack of consistent funding was also identified as a barrier, both for families and social programs in general.

Based on community input and the results of the gap analysis, the Task Force proposes the following actions toward creating safe and connected communities where all citizens feel secure:

Action 1: Share, Monitor and Advocate

Valuable insights gained by the Task Force on the realities, gaps and proposed solutions to urban violence, including those that were outside the scope of the task force, will be consolidated and shared through a letter from the Task Force Chair to appropriate organizations. The City will schedule a check-in with each organization to monitor progress. The Chair will continue to advocate to the Government of Canada on issues related to urban violence.

Action 2: Apply for and Align Funding

• The City will create an action plan for funding based on criteria identified by the community and Task Force to **apply for** anticipated federal grants from Public Safety Canada. Calgary's potential share of the funding over the next five years would then finance solicited proposals from the community that **align** with the criteria to support immediate, Calgary-based community solutions specific to gang and gun violence.

Based on feedback from the community and the Task Force, criteria for the potential investments could include, but is not limited to: improved navigation of programs, barrier-free youth programs, increased supports for offenders, increased supports for youth addiction recovery, and increased programming for parents and families. The criteria could also be used to guide partnership opportunities or future applications for other funding sources as they arise.

Action 3: Coordinate and Improve Navigation and Access

• The City will play a key role in system mapping, **coordinating** community stakeholders to identify and prioritize needs and opportunities related to at-risk and gang-involved populations. This work will involve identifying gaps and barriers around **navigating** gang-specific programming, improving **access** for those at-risk or involved in gang activity, and supporting advocacy-focused initiatives toward systemic change.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Background

On 2020 February 3, Council unanimously approved Notice of Motion PFC2020-0120 initiating the formation of a Community-Based Public Safety Task Force (the Task Force) to identify and address community concerns around escalating violent crime in Calgary, with a focus on gang and gun violence.

Building on the commitment of the Calgary Police Service to tackle crime and firearms-related violence, the key purpose of the Task Force was to provide a foundation for a broader communitydriven and community-owned strategy that is collaborative and proposes solutions that improve safety and the perception of safety in communities.

Using a cross-sectoral approach, the Task Force brought together a coalition of partners to focus their diverse perspectives on the complex issue of gang and gun violence and to identify tangible actions that are aligned with the needs of communities. The work of the Task Force was also guided by Notice of Motion C2020-0715 approved by Council on 2020 June 15 which affirmed Calgary's commitment to anti-racism and directed the Task Force to consider issues of systemic racism. To support this initiative, the Task Force actively sought out the perspectives of marginalized communities, including the Black, Indigenous and People of Colour (BIPOC) community, to inform its recommendations, and evaluated local programs and services to identify systemic and language barriers to participation, as well as opportunities to collaborate on initiatives that address structural racism at the community level.



It is important to note that several other initiatives have been ongoing or introduced since the Task Force was formed, including the Community Action on Mental Health and Addiction Strategy, the Community Safety Investment Framework and Calgary Police's Gang Strategy and Anti-Racism Action Committee, that are separate, but have significant parallels with the work of the Task Force.

The mandate of the Task Force was to review local and national programs and engage community members to understand which services are effective, and identify gaps, challenges and issues with existing programs. Research and public engagement were also used by Task Force members to provide Council with actionable recommendations with a focus on identifying and addressing community concerns around urban violence.

The Task Force was composed of a diverse group of experts and professionals from various fields, including representatives from all orders of government, the Calgary Police Service, the Calgary Police Commission, public education, academia, local service agencies and community leaders.

Task Force members convened six times over a period of nine months. At meetings, the Task Force identified priorities, set goals and objectives and received presentations and briefings from various partners, including community organizations, City agencies, academia and the provincial and federal governments. Outside of scheduled meetings, the Task Force sought input from the community through targeted stakeholder engagement which occurred from 2020 September to November, as well as public engagement which was completed in 2020 November and December. Other activities which informed the work of the Task Force included a scan of existing prevention programs and services in Calgary and a review of innovative programs in other jurisdictions.

1.2 Purpose and Structure of Report

The purpose of this report is to provide advice and recommendations to Council on addressing community concerns around gang and gun violence, with a focus on prevention. In crafting recommendations, the Task Force considered several factors which appear in the report in the following sections:

- Voices of the Community summarizes the results of targeted stakeholder and public engagement conducted by the Task Force. Engagement was undertaken with marginalized communities, including the Black and Indigenous communities as part of Calgary's commitment to anti-racism.
- Realities & Responses summarizes existing local programs, as well as promising programs in comparable jurisdictions which support the reduction of gang and gun violence. A gap analysis of existing local programs and services is also provided.
- Recommendations for Action outlines the recommendations and proposed timeline for actions provided by the Task Force.

Additional background information and supporting documents are provided in the appendices.



CPS2021-0540

Attachment 2

1.3 Strategic Framework

The strategic framework in Figure 1 provides a visual outline of the Task Force's overarching structure for improving public safety in Calgary communities. The intent of the framework is to provide a blueprint for purpose, direction, strategic actions and intended outcomes, both now and in the future.

The center of the framework establishes the vision of the Task Force and describes why the work is important. The next ring outlines the scope of the work as defined by the Task Force's mandate and identifies directions for public policy. The third circle lists strategic actions and defines how stakeholders work together to achieve the ultimate outcomes of the Task Force which are featured in the outermost circle of the framework.



Figure 1 – Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Strategic Framework

CPS2021-0540 Attachment 2

1.4 Current Landscape

Though not unique to Calgary, violent crime has been steadily increasing since 2016. Community perceptions of public safety have been impacted by a rise in offences involving firearms and handguns, including a significant increase in 2020 (Figure 2)*. The increase in shooting incidents in 2020 is even more concerning since overall violence fell in 2020 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. A shooting incident is defined by the Calgary Police Service as any discharge from a firearm that results in personal injury, property damage or corroborating physical evidence.

Of the 511 shootings that have occurred over the last five years, 54% were targeted. A closer examination of these targeted shootings reveals that over half (54%) were motivated by the drug trade while 13% were motivated by disputes between gangs, 34 of which resulted in a homicide. On average, between 2015 and 2020, one in five victims, and 16% of identified suspects were between the ages of 19 and 25 years of age.

Over the last five years the communities that have had the greatest number of shootings are those in the Northeast (NE) and Southeast (SE) quadrants of the city (total number of shootings in brackets):

- Beltline, SW / SE (24)
- Rundle, NE (16)
- Pineridge, NE (15)
- Southview, SE (14)
- Penbrooke Meadows, SE (14)
- Marlborough, NE (14)
- Temple, NE (12)
- Dover, SE (11)
- Whitehorn, NE (11)
- Taradale, NE (10)

As trends continue to evolve, so too does the gang landscape in Calgary. According to Criminal Intelligence Service Canada, there were at least ten active criminal networks operating in the city in 2019. While traditional organized crime networks tend to be highly structured groups led by a few key players, gangs today can also be loose affiliations of individuals who form alliances to achieve short-term, mutually beneficial goals.



Figure 2 – Shooting incidents in Calgary 2015-2020

Although gang loyalty is often built along social, cultural or ethnic lines, members can also be highly transient, associating with multiple gangs in Calgary, as well as in other jurisdictions in Alberta and across Canada. To reflect this evolution, the current definition of gangs used by the Calgary Police Service encompasses organized crime and loose criminal networks.

Although there is a heightened awareness of gang-related gun crime due to the violent nature of these offences and their impact on communities, other criminal activities in which gangs are often involved include theft and robbery, trafficking and dealing in drugs, people, weapons and counterfeit goods, fraud and financial crime, cybercrime and child sexual exploitation. Gangs also engage in active recruitment of children and youth, often targeting those who lack social connections or belong to marginalized communities.

In 2020 January, the Calgary Police Service approved a service-wide gang strategy guided by the four interconnected pillars of Predict, Protect, Pursue and Prevent. The priority is to reduce the threat and impact of gang crime in Calgary using a coordinated approach, while also acknowledging that new ideas and approaches are needed to address gang and gun violence, as well as other systemic issues at the community level.

*Data in this section provided by the Calgary Police Service

Community Realities

I had an opportunity to meet with a young South Sudanese youth, "Smith", who has been in Calgary Correction Centre from January 2020. My meeting with Smith was incredibly positive, he remembered me from a time when I would give out free meals to him and a friend whenever I met them. Smith began to explain his conviction leading to arrest from theft, gun possession and trafficking. I initiated the cause of his actions, he said, "poverty and family falling apart." Smith and his family have been living in Calgary Housing from the time they moved to Canada.

Smith's statement is that the Police system has treated him very unfairly. He feels alone while all his friends have a community that advocates for them, but South Sudanese has none. He continued saying, "he was falsely accused of stealing a jacket that he actually bought. The School principal called the police on him because the jacket seemed expensive. When he tried to explain he was called to the office and asked if he bought the jacket or if he stole it. Smith urged the police officer that was very rude to him to call the store and ask. The police officer called and said, "was there any theft at the store by a tall black man?" The store manager said no but there was a jacket bought by a young tall black boy. He also said every week police officers would come to his school and go through his locker, throwing everything on the ground then leave the place scattered. Smith said, officers would tell him, "you will never finish school, you're nothing but a drug dealer, then he would get arrested during lunch hours and all student are watching." And because of all this he is hurt and has no respect for the police system.

- Akeir Mel Kuol, Founder and CEO, Best Help Family Foundation

2.0 Voices of the Community

Recognizing that the best solutions to community concerns about public safety will be collaborative and inclusive, the Task Force engaged a diverse cross-section of Calgarians to better understand the concerns of community members and learn from the lived experience of those who may have been affected by urban violence, including gang and gun violence.

An additional goal of engagement as outlined in the mandate of the Task Force was to identify positive actions already underway in communities, as well as any gaps, challenges and issues with existing crime prevention programs and services. In support of Notice of Motion C2020-0715 affirming The City of Calgary's commitment to anti-racism, the Task Force approached all engagement through a lens of systemic racism by actively reaching out to marginalized communities, including the BIPOC community, to provide a true representation of Calgary's residents.

2.1 Community Engagement

In 2020 August, the Task Force began identifying communities and groups of interest for targeted stakeholder engagement sessions. From 2020 September to November, a series of in-person and virtual engagement sessions were conducted with 15 different groups including community associations, ethnocultural groups, academia, LGBTQ2S+ community members, education stakeholders and students, criminal justice experts, firearms industry participants, and individuals with lived experience of domestic violence and gang violence. Sessions were conducted in a facilitated round-table format to allow participants to lead the discussion on priority issues for them. Following the community engagement sessions, common themes were identified and grouped to better inform the recommendations of the Task Force.

The following are the key themes that emerged from community engagement:

Existing Programs & Services

• **Coordination of resources** – Stakeholders felt that there is a lack of coordination



between existing programs and services. They felt that many services are being offered in silos rather than as interconnected supports. For example, trauma, mental health and addiction are being treated as individual issues but often have the same underlying cause.

- Lack of information There is a lack of information in communities on the variety and type of services that are available and how to access them. There also needs to be more information on how to navigate various formal systems and processes (e.g. the process for families to regain custody of their children from Child Protective Services).
- **Barriers** Participants identified a number of barriers which prevent individuals from accessing programs and services, such as language barriers and being a member of a marginalized community. Individuals who are unable to express their needs in their own



language have difficulty accessing the appropriate type of care and may also lack a sense of identity and belonging to their community.

Gaps

- Youth programs Stakeholders expressed a desire for more flexible, drop-in programs for youth to participate in sports and social activities in their own neighbourhoods. They also felt that youth would benefit from more positive role models, such as successful individuals who grew up in their own community, to encourage them to stay in school.
- Education Schools are not always equipped to meet the individual needs of all students and community members. There is also a lack of support for newcomer parents with navigating the education system, particularly with respect to the admission requirements and process for pursuing postsecondary education. Families often encounter biases and discriminatory behaviour that erodes trust with the education system and discourages parents and youth from reaching out to schools as a trusted resource.
- Culturally-specific programming Stakeholders felt that there are not enough programs and services that recognize the unique needs of different ethnocultural

groups. There is also a lack of professionals working in the areas of mental health, addictions, child protection and gang prevention and intervention who understand, or seek to understand, the cultural context of the community groups they serve, as well as the specific challenges facing newcomers, such as the trauma of immigration adversity.

- Parenting Programs For programs that focus on parenting skills development, there is a need to examine expectations for parents and take into consideration different parenting styles across cultures and traditions. Programs need to expand beyond the Westernized standard of parenting and recognize that a one-size-fits-all approach may not be effective or culturally appropriate. Assessments and home studies must also be culturally informed to prevent prejudicial evaluations of what constitutes child protection.
- Program evaluation Community evaluation of gang prevention and intervention programs is needed to determine whether programs are having the intended outcomes and impacts on the target population. Community stakeholders and those with lived experience in programs should be engaged to help design solutions.
- Funding A lack of consistent funding was identified as a major issue for local programs and services, particularly among Black-led organizations. Stakeholders also emphasized that families often don't have the resources to pay for programs that would keep their children safe and out of trouble.

"

There is a lot of responsibility on newcomer parents to navigate the education system, which may be totally different than the system back in their country of origin.

"

" A mother and her children landed in Canada as

A mother and her children landed in Canada as refugees of the civil war in South Sudan. Unfortunately, they did not escape violence. As she worked full-time to support her family, she was unable to raise her kids with the level of attention she wanted to give them. Her son was the victim of a shooting. Language barriers, poverty, and generational trauma led to a cycle of violence that followed her family across the world.

"Youth in the (South Sudanese) community navigate between fitting into the 'Canadian' culture, honoring their South Sudanese traditions, and overcoming the trauma from fleeing the war. Not to mention the loss of loved ones in this journey, and having their lives completely uprooted."

- Engagement participant

Systemic Racism

- Experience of Inequality Gang and gun violence disproportionately impacts Black youth and racialized communities in Calgary. The BIPOC community expressed a feeling of being overrepresented in the justice system and shared stories of being "carded" (i.e. asked by police to show identification with no justification). Many in the BIPOC community feel as though they can't call police when they've been the victim of a crime.
- Police hiring practices and training Stakeholders felt that the BIPOC community is underrepresented in the Calgary Police Service and that hiring needs to be conducted through a lens of anti-racism to ensure better representation. They also felt that current antiracism training for the Calgary Police Service is inadequate and treated as more of an obligation than an opportunity to learn how to apply a mindset of anti-racism in real-world situations. Many felt that training should be developed in collaboration with the BIPOC community and taught by an instructor with a lived experience of systemic racism.
- **Police funding** Stakeholders felt that funding is being disproportionately allocated to the police budget to manage crime, while prevention programs are underfunded. They shared that if more funds are provided to social agencies to deal with low-risk situations, police could direct individuals to resources that are more equipped to handle offender or victim needs.

2.2 Public Engagement

To better engage with Calgarians from across the city, the Task Force launched an on-line citizen survey from 2020 November 3 to December 18. The survey sought input on perceptions of the biggest public safety issues in local communities and asked for suggestions on possible solutions.

There was a total of 2,853 unique visitors to the online site and 593 who contributed feedback. The highest number of responses were received from residents of Ward 7 at 31%, followed by

"

In Calgary, despite Black-led organizations' success and long-term track record in building safe communities, they continue to be marginalized and excluded from government initiatives and funding.



Ward 8 at 11%. The results of the survey are not statistically representative of the larger Calgary population but do provide insight into respondents' perspectives on public safety at the time of engagement.

The top five biggest public safety issues identified by respondents were auto theft/break-ins (66%), home break-ins (46%), illegal drug use (30%), traffic issues (27%) and illegal drug sales (22%). Gang violence was identified by 8% of respondents as being a big public safety issue in their community while 5% of respondents identified gun violence.

An additional question on the survey asked respondents to provide suggestions for increasing public safety within their community and in Calgary. The following themes emerged:

- More police presence The theme most frequently referenced by respondents was a desire for increased police presence in communities with no reductions in funding for the police budget. Participants also suggested improved response times, better followthrough from the police, and more awareness of the role of Community Resource Officers.
- More social programs The second most identified theme was around developing more accessible programs and services for youth, young adults and individuals experiencing mental health challenges. Participants supported reallocating funds from the police budget to social service agencies to decriminalize and destigmatize issues involving mental health, homelessness, and the BIPOC and LGBTQ2S+ communities.

They also suggested improved training for police to deal with substance abuse issues rather than through traditional enforcement and prosecution. Increased funding of social agencies was associated with having a strong economy and more opportunities for residents to find good jobs with better wages.

- Community-led safety initiatives There was support for more funding and training for community-led safety initiatives such as Block Watch and grassroots community crime awareness and prevention initiatives.
- Improved safety infrastructure Participants suggested making improvements to safety infrastructure in the city including better lighting, more closed-circuit camera surveillance, more peace officer presence and safety mechanisms on public transit, and more traffic calming measures and enforcement.

More detailed results from the public engagement survey including a selection of verbatim comments from participants are included in the full What We Heard Report in Appendix 5.



"

Is there enough diversity among professionals working in gang prevention and intervention? We need more professionals who not only speak the language, but also truly understand (or seek to understand) the backgrounds of the communities they work with.

"

Community Realities

" ~~

The Bear Clan Patrol has located missing people. One was a child in care who ran away. Resources are stretched but people we talked with felt safer with us, that we weren't going to make the situation worse, some folks have fear about calling police. They worry about being arrested, having rights violated, assaulted, humiliated, demeaned or treated as a criminal. For these specific reasons, once we put the call out to Facebook we were flooded with tips and volunteers to help aid in the search for this child. We found her within a few hours. One of the police who came once we found her, wanted to bring her back to care or throw her in jail. This issue for me is problematic as we see the need and try to give reason for someone running away. Thankfully, Alan Chamberlain (this is an Indigenous Liaison Officer with the CPS) had also responded and came to help. He was able to find a third option in which the child felt safe and protected, where the threat of either going home or jail wasn't presented.

> - Gitz Crazyboy, Youth Educator/Activist/Author, Bear Clan Patrol Calgary

3.0 Realities & Responses

As part of its mandate, the Task Force reviewed existing gang prevention, intervention and suppression initiatives in Calgary. Programs are offered by a number of partners, including The City of Calgary, the Government of Alberta, Public Safety Canada, the Calgary Police Service, Alberta Health Services, the Calgary Board of Education and the Calgary Catholic School District, as well as social service and non-profit agencies, and faith and ethnocultural groups.

Programs and strategies that focus on prevention, intervention and suppression are effective tools for addressing gang involvement and gangrelated violence. Prevention programs generally target children and youth at high risk of becoming involved in crime, often by strengthening protective factors against gang involvement such as participation in sports, pro-social activities and positive interactions with adults in school or community settings.

In contrast, gang intervention programs typically focus on individuals who are actively engaged in a gang or have been involved in criminal activity. These programs are more likely to offer a wraparound approach which provides on-going support and removes barriers to education, employment and access to recreation and cultural activities. Both types of programs work by increasing positive influences in the lives of individuals and caregivers, while ensuring families have the basic needs, knowledge and skills required to mitigate the impact of risk factors.

A third strategy for reducing gang violence is gang suppression, which focuses on enforcement and prosecution to target and disrupt gangs and criminal networks.

3.1 Programs and Services in Calgary

The following section provides a summary of existing programs and initiatives in Calgary. Programs have been classified as either prevention, intervention or suppression, however, some overlap in mandate or service delivery may exist. While these programs focus specifically on at-risk or gang involved populations, a selection of additional services working to reduce risk factors and increase protective factors for families are available and have been included in Appendix 4.



Prevention Programs

Calgary AfterSchool

Funded by Family and Community Support Services, Calgary AfterSchool is delivered by Calgary Neighbourhoods and Calgary Recreation and provides safe, free and fun programs for atrisk children and youth during critical hours when gaps in supervision may exist between a child's school day and a family's workday. The goal of the program is to help participants improve school performance, stay productive, learn new skills and make new connections with peers.

Gang Helpline

The helpline was established by the Calgary Police Service for residents to call in tips and concerns about gang activity. Staff can also provide assistance to individuals who want to exit the gang lifestyle or know of someone who needs help getting out of a gang.

Integrated School Support Program (ISSP)

ISSP uses a prevention-based wraparound approach to support students and parents at two elementary schools in the Forest Lawn community. The program provides access to an on-site psychologist, physical education specialist, social worker, health clinician, academic support,



meal and after school programs, and a positive police presence. Program partners include the Calgary Board of Education, the Calgary Catholic School District, the Calgary Police Youth Foundation and the Calgary Police Service.

Multi Agency School Support Team (MASST)

This partnership between The City, the Calgary Police Service, Alberta Health Services, the Calgary Board of Education and Calgary Catholic School District, with programming support from the Calgary Police Youth Foundation, targets children between 5-12 who are at risk of future criminal involvement or victimization. The program aims to foster positive change by strengthening protective factors such as school performance, constructive use of time, peer relationships and parenting skills for families and caregivers.

Stay Smart Stay Safe (S4)

This collaborative initiative between the Calgary Police Service, the Calgary Board of Education

and the Calgary Catholic School District partners police officers with teachers to engage students in strengths-based lessons in the classroom. The program helps build competency in areas such as problem solving, communication, healthy relationship-building and personal and community safety with a goal of decreasing youth involvement in criminal activity.

Soccer Without Boundaries

This grassroots volunteer organization offers a variety of multicultural outreach programs designed to foster a sense of belonging among new Canadian youth at-risk of violence, gang involvement and drug use. The program improves self-esteem and pro-social behaviour through organized soccer clubs, after school programming and mentorship opportunities, and provides support to families by improving food security and helping to meet basic needs.

YouthLink – Gang Life Ends Here

This partnership between the Calgary Police Service and YouthLink, with funding from the Calgary Police Youth Foundation, targets youth 12 and over and is designed to raise awareness of current issues surrounding gang violence and provides information for parents on how to support youth in avoiding a high-risk lifestyle and gang recruitment. The program uses experiential learning exhibits, interactive and engaging online games and curriculum-based lesson plans.

Intervention Programs

Calgary Indigenous Court (CIC) & Drug Court

These special courts of the Provincial Court of Alberta were established to handle cases in a therapeutic and culturally appropriate manner. The CIC facilitates restorative justice through peacemaking and connecting individuals to their cultures and communities. It utilizes dedicated judges who are Indigenous or experienced in Indigenous Restorative Justice, an Indigenous Crown Prosecutor, designated duty counsel and Indigenous Legal Counsel, Restorative Justice Peacemakers, Traditional Knowledge Keepers, Indigenous Court Workers and community support agencies. The Drug Court aims to break the cycle of criminal behaviour by diverting participants away from prison and into a drug treatment program if they have been involved in a non-violent offence.

Calgary John Howard Society (CJHS)

This non-profit organization offers a range of intervention programs for youth and young adults aged 12-24 which aim to address the root causes of crime by removing barriers to education, employment, housing and support. CJHS also runs programs which offer opportunities for conflict resolution, restorative justice and after prison outreach. The Mentorship for Indigenous Youth program connects participants with Elders to strengthen cultural identity and provide positive mentors. CJHS also provides outreach, advocacy and support services for Indigenous or immigrant youth who are exhibiting criminal behaviour.



Community Corrections

Alberta Justice & Solicitor General provides support to youth up to 18 years as they complete court-ordered, community-based sentences (including probation). The goal of the program is to reduce escalation and recidivism by increasing protective factors such as employment, housing and social connections, and reducing risk factors such as substance use and mental health concerns.

Gateway

Gateway is a pre-charge diversion program for youth aged 12-18 who have committed minor, non-violent offences and accept responsibility for their actions. Program staff also refer participants and their families for counseling and assist in connecting individuals with additional programs and resources. Gateway is a partnership between The City of Calgary and the Calgary Police Service.

Real Me: Gang Intervention

This program developed and run by The Centre for Newcomers uses a high-fidelity wraparound approach to help newcomer youth aged 12-24 who are currently involved in gang-related activities or at risk of becoming involved in the gang lifestyle. The program assists participants by creating their own team of family members and support professionals and facilitates relationships with positive peers and opportunities for pro-social activities, among other interventions.

ReDirect

This program aims to prevent the radicalization of youth up to age 24 to ideologies of violent extremism by strengthening protective factors such as social inclusion, independence and improved mental and emotional wellbeing. *ReDirect* is a partnership between The City of Calgary, the Calgary Police Service and Alberta Health Services, with funding from Public Safety Canada.

Restorative Actions for Transformation (RAFT)

RAFT is a partnership between The City and the Mennonite Central Committee (with funding from Family and Community Support Services) which provides youth aged 12-18 who have committed an offence with the opportunity to participate in the restorative justice process. The program helps participants understand the negative impacts of their actions on victims, the community and themselves, with a goal of identifying triggers and strategies to manage offending behaviour and decrease recidivism.

Youth at Risk Development Program (YARD)

This partnership between The City of Calgary, the Calgary Police Service and Alberta Health Services (with programming support provided by the Calgary Police Youth Foundation) supports youth aged 10-17 who are at risk of gang involvement. Using a wraparound approach, YARD focuses on addressing the root causes of gang involvement in order to decrease gang activity, recruitment and recidivism among program participants.

"

We have to focus on the factors that lead to violence such as a lack of resources at home, family violence, parents who work multiple jobs or single moms, societal and systemic issues, and gender-based violence as a precursor to gang violence.

"

Gang Suppression

In 2020, the Calgary Police Service formed the Organized Crime & Offender Management Section to better coordinate and align gang suppression and offender management resources. The following teams and units combine to suppress organized crime and gang activity:

Guns & Gangs Unit

Guns & Gangs works collaboratively with the Real Time Operations Centre as well as a variety of other partner agencies, including corrections, probation and parole, to monitor known gang members in communities to ensure individuals are abiding by curfews and other enforceable conditions of release.

Gang Suppression Team (GST)

GST is a specialized unit of experienced officers who patrol licensed premises to disrupt drug and gang-related activities. They also conduct directed patrols in areas known for organized crime activity.

Gang Enforcement Team (GET)

GET investigates gang related crime and targets of interest and provides support to other units and institutions (e.g. corrections) on gang-related investigations.

Intelligence Group (OIG)

OIG provides 24 hour/day, real time intelligence information to front line operations on organized crime including violent gang offenders and ongoing enforcement activity and opportunities.

Firearms Investigative Team (FIT)

FIT's mandate is to conduct investigations into firearms trafficking and source all firearms seized by the CPS.

Front-line Patrol & Investigations

Patrol members and investigators, as well as Community Resource Officers and School Resource Officers play an important role in gang suppression and enforcement activities in communities as part of the CPS' integrated response to organized crime.

CPS2021-0540

Attachment 2

3.2 Programs in Other Jurisdictions

Community concerns about escalating gang and gun violence is not just a Calgary issue. The Task Force investigated a variety of different approaches being used in other jurisdictions in Canada and other countries to discourage gang involvement and reduce urban violence. The models included below were referred to the Task Force by academia and experts working in the field or have shown promise in reducing criminal outcomes in communities.



Gang Prevention Programs

Surrey Anti-gang Family Empowerment Program (SAFE), Surrey, BC

Funded by Public Safety Canada and run by the City of Surrey, the SAFE program is a collection of 11 unique programs delivered by 10 partner agencies. The goal of SAFE is to proactively divert vulnerable individuals away from gang involvement by offering a variety of services such as cultural support to children, youth and families at higher risk and services targeted to specific neighbourhoods. Examples of programs offered by SAFE include: Caregiver Education, Female Youth Gang Intervention, the Intercultural Family Intervention Program, the South Asian Family Strengthening Team and the High Risk Youth Justice Program.

End Gang Life, Surrey, BC

This education campaign developed by the Combined Forces Special Enforcement Unit – BC and partners exposes myths about gang life through eye-catching posters, videos and outreach activities developed for youth at schools, community groups and ethnocultural associations. A feature of the program was an information booklet for parents on youth gang involvement published in eight different languages, as well as an extensive social media and communication campaign which included culturally tailored messaging on ethnic media outlets targeted at parents, siblings and neighbours concerned about gang-involved family and community members.

Yo Bro / Yo Girl Youth Initiative, Surrey, BC

This program provided by the Surrey School District runs several strength-based programs focused on raising awareness of drugs, gangs, healthy relationships, violence prevention and emotional self-control. The initiative also offers an after school mixed martial arts program for children and youth aged 6-18 who are most at risk of gang involvement, violence and substance use. The program was founded by a former gang member and recovering addict who imparts his lived experience on participants.

Gang Intervention Programs

Cure Violence (Chicago, IL and many other jurisdictions)

This comprehensive strategy developed by the non-profit Cure Violence Organization takes a health-based approach to gang prevention by treating it as an epidemic outbreak. By diagnosing and treating gang violence through a disease control lens, the program aims to limit the spread of violence in high crime areas through behaviour modification. A unique feature of the program are former gang members who act as "violence interrupters" to mediate disputes between rival gangs and encourage gang exiting after traumatic incidents or at critical junctures in an individual's life.

In It Together, Abbotsford, BC

This partnership between the South Asian Community Resource Office, Youth Resource Centre, Abbotsford Police Department and Abbotsford School District is based on the Spergel Model which is a three-pronged approach to gang prevention which coordinates prevention, intervention and suppression activities. The goal of the program is to interrupt the flow of youth into the gang lifestyle by providing integrated case management and counselling to youth and their families, as well as recreational opportunities, youth and parent groups and essential skill development for high-risk families. Services are provided in both English and Punjabi.

Multisystemic Therapy (MST), Toronto and multiple other jurisdictions

MST is a home-based program for youth aged 12-17 that provides more intensive therapy than traditional family counselling programs. By offering therapy in a convenient and comfortable location for families, barriers to treatment are removed and youth and families receive integrated case management and help with reducing the potential impact of an individual's home life or social network on anti-social and delinquent behaviour.

Stop Now and Plan (SNAP) Model Programs,

Edmonton, AB and multiple other jurisdictions worldwide

The SNAP program is an internationally recognized, community-based program for families and youth aged 6-12 who have engaged in criminal behaviour or are at risk of doing so. The program is delivered in a classroom setting by facilitators who teach cognitive behaviour modification techniques designed to reduce aggression, rule-breaking tendencies and conduct issues. The program is typically delivered by community organizations in partnership with schools, police and social service agencies.

Gang Exiting and Re-Integration Programs

Homeboy Industries, Los Angeles, CA

This internationally recognized program provides mental health treatment, case management, tattoo removal, employment services, legal services, educational opportunities and job certification for youth and adults exiting gangs or criminal organizations. The success of the program is due to its "one-stop-shop approach" where all services are housed under one roof and can be accessed by participants during the 18month program.

STR8 UP Gang Violence Reduction Strategy, Saskatoon & St. Albert, SK

STR8 UP is a grassroots community intervention model that offers programs for individuals aged 15-30 who want to exit the gang lifestyle. The program provides support with the four key areas of outreach, training, personal development and community education, and offers opportunities to strengthen cultural identify for Indigenous participants. STR8 Up aims to reduce further contact with the criminal justice system by engaging with individuals over the long-term as they complete the steps of the program: Outreach (4-6 months), Transformation (1-2 years) and Support & Sustainment (1-2 years).





"

One tragic example of domestic assault using a firearm was the case of Nadia El-dib, who was stabbed and shot by her partner in Calgary with a legally obtained firearm, who died himself four days later in a shootout with RCMP officers near Edmonton.

While domestic related calls continue to be high in 2020 at 11,098 for the first and second quarter, we continue to see a low number of domestic assaults with a weapon. With the majority of domestic homicides and domestic assaults in Calgary not involving the use of a firearm, guns are still used as a tool of coercion and control in intimate partner relationships.

- Calgary Domestic Violence Collective

"



3.3 Gap Analysis

Although there are a significant number of programs being offered in Calgary to help improve outcomes for at-risk individuals and families, opportunities exist to expand and coordinate services for potentially underserved populations. The following summary outlines the initial gaps identified by the Task Force based on stakeholder feedback and the review of existing programs and services in Calgary (Figure 3) and other jurisdictions.

 There is an opportunity to increase public awareness of the realities and consequences of gang involvement at the broader community or city level. The 'YouthLink – Gang Life Ends Here' program is designed to raise awareness of gang life for youth over 12 and their parents, however there are few other programs that build public recognition of the issue among all members of

the community. A comprehensive public

awareness campaign which uses a variety of modalities to reach community members, including culturally appropriate media and messaging, can be used to educate and clear up misconceptions about gang life, and can also encourage residents to take action. Frequent and recurring campaigns which create a network of supporters, including community partners, business leaders and influential community members, can further spread the message about gang prevention with specific audiences that may otherwise not be engaged.

• Better system navigation and coordination would enhance existing prevention and intervention programs. Although there are many prevention and intervention programs in Calgary which aim to reduce risk factors and increase protective factors for children and youth, there is a lack of information for individuals and families on how to navigate to appropriate services, as well as a need for
CPS2021-0540

better coordination between programs. Improvements in this area would highlight capacity issues in existing programs and would help ensure that individuals transitioning through life stages (e.g. from youth to adulthood) receive uninterrupted support.

• There is a need for more culturally appropriate programming options. There is a gap in prevention and intervention programs that support newcomers and address the specific needs of individual ethnocultural groups. More programs that deliver services in multiple languages and take into consideration barriers to integration, such as immigration trauma, system navigation for education and other resources, and parenting skills development are required. Program design and delivery should be informed by diverse worldviews, ways of knowing and being, cultural beliefs and practices. Additional



- protective factors, such as home visits by healthcare professionals and parent support programs, are an identified need for families coming from conflict zones.
- There is an opportunity to provide more formal support to parents and caregivers.

There are relatively few prevention and intervention programs targeted specifically to parents and caregivers of at-risk or ganginvolved children and youth. Programs which offer parent workshops or skills development opportunities, either through schools or community agencies, could help parents and caregivers resolve anti-social behaviours in children before they escalate to criminality.

• There is limited access to gang exiting

programs. There is a need to provide more support for high-risk youth and adults who are ready to leave the gang lifestyle and transition back into the community. For those released from remand, more short-term supports are needed to quickly connect individuals with resources to decrease the potential for escalation or reoffending. Additional long-term re-entry programs are also needed to provide wraparound services to offenders that require more intensive post-custody support with mental health and addictions counselling, housing, employment, life-skills development and culturally appropriate interventions and community supports.

• There is a need for street outreach focused on gang-involved individuals. There is an opportunity to increase support for grassroots, street outreach programs to meet hard-toreach, gang-involved individuals where they are. Outreach workers engage individuals outside of agency walls by building relationships and using trauma-informed and culturally appropriate interventions to connect individuals to services. Grassroots organizations and street outreach programs that draw on the lived experience of gang involvement can also normalize the idea of exiting the gang lifestyle and provide positive examples of successful transitions.

CPS2021-0540

Attachment 2

There is an opportunity to apply a lens of anti-racism and anti-colonialism to program development and evaluation. Systemic and structural barriers often prevent diverse community members and families, particularly those in the BIPOC community, from accessing essential resources and services. There is a need to collaborate with the BIPOC community and those with lived experience to address existing inequalities in gang prevention, intervention and exiting programs, both for individuals and on a community-wide level. Greater support for advocacy-focused initiatives that work to identify and address systemic issues and ideologies within institutions is also required.



"

The community and those with lived experience need to be involved in all facets of program development, including evaluation, so we know whether programs are actually having an impact and working for the intended populations.

		WY Carslos	Adrento 1	out12:18	duits 18th	ent Careelive	Patriere al
	434	N C	Hore v	outer h	adur Par	entr other	Par Cal
Calgary AfterSchool		1	Ť				
Gang Helpline			Ť		Å ⊧		9
Integrated School Support F Program (ISSP)		1					
MASST		1					.
Soccer Without Boundaries	•	1	Ť		Å		
Stay Smart Stay Safe (S4)		1					•
YouthLink (Gang Life Ends Here)			Ť		Å .		
Calgary Indigenous Court (CIC) & Drug Court			Ť				
Calgary John Howard Society			Ť				
Community Corrections			Ť				
Gateway Initiative Real Me: Gang Intervention (Centre for Newcomers)			Ť				*
Real Me: Gang Intervention (Centre for Newcomers)		1	Ť		Å .		\$
ReDirect			Ť				9
RAFT			Ť				
YARD		1	Ť				•
Gang Suppression Team (GST), Gang Enforcement Team (GET)							
Gang Enforcement Team (GET) Guns & Gangs Unit Firearms Investigation Team							2
Firearms Investigation Team (FIT), Intelligence Group (OIG)							*

Figure 3 – Target groups for existing programs in Calgary for at-risk and gang-involved populations



I was in a position where I was young, impressionable, my friends started to get into gang life and so did I. I look back on my life then and I realize that if I didn't go to prison for my particular offence, it would have been something else. Jail or death, it's what was in the cards for me – it was the life I was living at the time.

I needed mentorship. I needed guidance. Both of my parents were working long hours to keep food on our table, but this left little time to engage me and keep me supervised. After my offence, I knew something had to change so I went back to school, found mentors who believed in me and now I'm a published peer-reviewed author, have obtained a Master's degree from one of the best schools of Kinesiology in the world (right here in the University of Calgary), and have presented my research internationally numerous times. I didn't know this type of success was an option for me – I thought I would be stuck in gang life and didn't have anyone to mentor me through those formative years of my young life. Now, aside from running my own business and publishing scholarly works from my research, I mentor individuals through the Calgary John Howard Society, who have come out of incarceration so they can also find success and become positive and contributing members of our community.

We need leaders. I look at the individuals engaged in gun and gang violence in our city, and I see so much of myself in them. To throw your life away at such a young age seems unimaginable to most but these are our youth. My goal is to be the support for these individuals that I needed when I was their age, because we're not so different. Some of them just need an opportunity to actualize the potential they already have – but often these opportunities don't exist for them. By not stepping up and doing something we're failing our young people.

- Roger Jaswal, Volunteer Mentor, Building Bonds in the Community

4.0 Recommendations for Action

The purpose of the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force was to bring together a diverse group of citizens to provide recommendations and advice to Council on identifying and addressing community concerns around violence, including gang and gun violence.

Through an assessment of existing programs and services in Calgary and other jurisdictions, as well as extensive community and public engagement, the Task Force heard that gang and gun violence is a complex issue that requires a complex response, both on the ground at the community level and through the support and investment of partners.

Since it was initiated in 2020 February, the Task Force has worked amid a changing landscape in which a number of initiatives, such as the Anti-Racism Action Committee, the Community Action on Mental Health and Addiction Strategy, and the Community Safety Investment Framework, have been working to help address public safety concerns in Calgary. These programs target similar root causes, conditions and consequences of urban violence; however, the mandate of the Task Force was focused on providing a foundation for a community-driven, communityowned collaborative approach to concerns around gang and gun violence.

With this in mind, the following recommendations propose tangible actions within the scope of the Task Force that can be taken to create safe and connected communities where all citizens feel secure. Specific themes that emerged from the Task Force to inform each action item are summarized in Appendix 6.

Action 1: Share, Monitor and Advocate

Valuable insights gained by the Task Force on the realities, gaps and proposed solutions to urban violence, including those that were outside the scope of the task force, will be consolidated and **shared** through a letter from the Task Force Chair to appropriate organizations. The City will schedule a check-in with each organization to **monitor** progress. The Chair will continue to **advocate** to the Government of Canada on issues related to urban violence.

Action 2: Apply for and Align Funding

The City will create an action plan for funding based on criteria identified by the community and Task Force to **apply for** anticipated federal grants from Public Safety Canada. Calgary's potential share of the funding over the next five years would then finance solicited proposals from the community that **align** with the criteria to support immediate, Calgary-based community solutions specific to gang and gun violence.

Based on feedback from the community and the Task Force, criteria for the potential investments could include, but is not limited to: improved navigation of programs, barrier-free youth programs, increased supports for offenders, increased supports for youth addiction recovery, and increased programming for parents and families. The criteria could also be used to guide partnership opportunities or future applications for other funding sources as they arise.

Action 3: Coordinate and Improve Navigation and Access

The City will play a key role in system mapping, **coordinating** community stakeholders to identify and prioritize needs and opportunities related to at-risk and gang-involved populations. This work will involve identifying gaps and barriers around **navigating** gang-specific programming, improving **access** for those at risk or involved in gang activity, and supporting advocacy-focused initiatives toward systemic change.

4.1 Timeline for Action

As outlined in Figure 4, the Task Force recommends implementing the proposed actions starting in **2021 May** to continue building on the momentum of the Task Force and to ensure organizations in Calgary are well-positioned to receive dedicated funding for community-led crime prevention programming focused on gun and gang violence from Public Safety Canada, which is anticipated to be available shortly.

In **2021 May**, the Chair of the Task Force will share the final Community-Based Public Safety Task Force report and a summary of additional feedback referred to Task Force member agencies (Appendix 7) to each organization to distribute and action as appropriate.

The City of Calgary will work with community stakeholders to finalize the framework for anticipated federal funding from Public Safety Canada by the end of **Q2 2021** and will play a key role in identifying opportunities to improve coordination, navigation and access to programs into **Q3 2021**.

The City will conduct a check-in with Task Force member agencies in **Q4 2021** to ensure referred items continue to receive advocacy and support.

A final update to Council on actions taken by member agencies, as well as on the outcomes of the Task Force recommendations is planned before the end of **Q4 2021** to review progress and assess how this initiative has contributed to community safety.





Figure 4 – 2021 action timeline

Appendix 1: Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Notice of Motion



Report Number: PFC2020-0120 Meeting: Combined Meeting of Council Meeting Date: 2020 February 03

NOTICE OF MOTION

RE: PUBLIC SAFETY TASK FORCE

Sponsoring Councillor(s): GEORGE CHAHAL, MAYOR NENSHI

WHEREAS Calgary is an inclusive place of safe and inspiring neighbourhoods, where everyone should be safe and feel welcome;

AND WHEREAS maintaining Calgary's consistent ranking as a great city within which to live will require commitment to the City of Calgary's resilience strategy that ensures we are addressing social, environmental and economic pillars of success in city-building, including public safety;

AND WHEREAS there are significant and growing citizen concerns regarding community safety given the recent increase in violence generally in late 2019 and early 2020, particularly drug-related violent crime involving firearms in Calgary;

AND WHEREAS violence can take many forms including suicide, domestic violence, and other criminal activity, including gangs and guns;

AND WHEREAS the Calgary Police Service (CPS) 3rd Quarter 2019 Statistical Report demonstrates that criminal activity involving firearms remains significantly above the five year average¹;

AND WHEREAS citizen concerns about crime and violence related to gun violence highlight the importance of the CPS commitment to community-based policing, as well as a need for a broader community strategy that is collaborative and proposes solutions that improve community safety;

AND WHEREAS there are a number of a initiatives and programs from both the public sector and civil society that focus on intervention and prevention that could be better aligned through a clear community-driven evaluation of these programs' successes and opportunities;

AND WHEREAS The City of Calgary should work with its public and private partners, including but not limited to: the federal and provincial governments, CPS, Calgary Police Commission, school boards, schools, teachers, parents, law abiding gun owners, and citizens to tackle the escalating issues of violence that include gangs and guns;

AND WHEREAS City Council and Administration should take immediate steps to respond to the spike in violent crime by seeking the best advice possible from public safety experts, the community and affected stakeholders through a cross-sector collaborative approach;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council direct Administration to create a Community-Based Public Safety Task Force, that will report back to Council with its best advice and recommendations relating to identifying and addressing community concerns around violence, including gangs and gun violence, based on the Task Force's engagement with community groups, review of existing programs and services locally and in other relevant jurisdictions;

AND FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council direct Administration to work with CPS, Calgary Police Commission and interested members of council to prepare a briefing to Council by 16 March 2020 with the Terms of Reference for the Task Force including membership which will be drawn from a broad base of community stakeholders.

¹https.\\www.calgaryca/cps/Documents/statistical-reports/Quarterly/QuarterlyReportQ3_2019.pdf

Appendix 2: Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Terms of Reference

Community-Based Public Safety Task Force

Terms of Reference

1. PURPOSE STATEMENT

Maintaining Calgary's consistent ranking as a great city within which to live will require commitment that ensures we are addressing social, environmental, and economic pillars of success in city-building, including public safety. The recommendations of the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force will support a broad, community-driven and community-owned, collaborative approach to gang and gun violence, built upon the strong foundation of established policies for efficient and effective policing. Community-Based Public Safety Task Force recommendations will encourage community partnerships that create safe and inspiring neighbourhoods where all citizens feel secure and are welcome to participate in the social, cultural, and economic life of the city.

2. AUTHORITY

The Community-Based Public Safety Task Force is advisory in nature and as directed by Notice of Motion PFC2020-0120 will provide Council with recommendations relating to community concerns around violence but will not have the authority to direct the activities of Council, the Calgary Police Commission, or the Calgary Police Service.

3. MANDATE

To (a) Review existing prevention programs and services locally and in other relevant jurisdictions;

(b) Listen to the community and identify positive actions underway, gaps, challenges and issues with existing programs and services; and

(c) Report back to Council with a summary of what was heard from the community and actionable recommendations with a focus on prevention related to community concerns around violence, including gang and gun violence.

4. TERM

The Community-Based Public Safety Task Force is expected to report back to Council in 2021 Q1 with a summary of what was heard from the community and actionable recommendations with a focus on prevention related to community concerns around violence, after which the task force will be disbanded.

5. FUNCTIONS

The Community-Based Public Safety Task Force is established to:

- (a) Develop a work plan and a timeline to guide Community-Based Public Safety Task Force work;
- (b) Liaise with members' respective agencies to support the identification of current programs, services, trends, and data providing members with a consistent overview. Members may be asked to bring forward existing reports from their organizations to inform all participants, but organizations will not be expected to conduct additional analysis or reporting, although may do so voluntarily.
- (c) Conduct a jurisdictional scan to identify programs and evidence that could be relevant locally;
- (d) Identify and approach external subject matter experts whose testimony or existing work would be beneficial to the work of the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force;
- (e) Receive and review input and presentations from the community and academia;
- (f) Hold public consultations, at the call of the Chair, to engage directly with communities throughout Calgary on their experiences with current programs and services and to identify gaps;
- (g) Request information, available in existing reports and documentation, through Community-Based Public Safety Task Force members that would assist in evaluating current prevention programs;
- (h) Report to Council with advice and recommendations addressing community concerns around violence, with a focus on prevention.

6. MEMBERSHIP

The Community-Based Public Safety Task Force will be representative of a diverse group of stakeholders. Participants will serve on a voluntary basis and be comprised of up to 14 members representing the following:

- (a) Calgary Police Commission (1)
- (b) Calgary Police Service (1)
- (c) Local Service Agency (2)
- (d) Calgary Board of Education (1)
- (e) Community Leaders (3)
- (f) Indigenous Community (1)
- (g) Academia (1)
- (h) Appointed Member/Representative of the Federal Government from the Calgary area (1)
- (i) Member of the Legislative Assembly from the Calgary area (1)
- (j) Councillor Chahal is the Chair and central point of contact for the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force
- (k) Mayor Nenshi is appointed to the Community-Based Task Force ex-officio

7. MEETINGS

- (a) Meetings will be held based on an agreed upon schedule, and/or at the call of the Chair.
- (b) The Committee shall meet a minimum of four (4) times prior to the production of final recommendations to be presented to Council.
- (c) A quorum for a meeting of the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force shall be eight (8) members. Members may send a designate at the approval of the Chair.
- (d) The agenda consistent with the scope and mandate of the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force shall be prepared by the Chair in consultation with the City Clerk.
- (e) Community-Based Public Safety Task Force meetings will be conducted in public unless the meeting may or must be closed to the public, pursuant to FOIP Act requirements.
- (f) Minutes of the meetings of the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force shall be recorded by City Clerk's Office and forwarded to Council as information.

8. GENERAL TERMS & CODE OF CONDUCT

(a) Decorum and Debate

Community-Based Public Safety Task Force members are expected to prepare for meetings by reading through their agenda materials ahead of time, arriving to the meeting on time and being respectful of others' thoughts and opinions.

(b) Recommendations and Decision-making

It is desirable that recommendations are acceptable to all Community-Based Public Safety Task Force members, but in circumstances where a consensus cannot be achieved, decisions will be made by a majority vote.

(c) Communication Channels

Community-Based Public Safety Task Force members will be the primary point of contact for their respective agencies and will manage questions, consultation, and requests for information.

(d) Attendance and Participation

Members must devote the necessary time and effort to prepare for meetings and provide feedback in keeping with the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force mandate.

(e) Authority and Reporting

The Community-Based Public Safety Task Force and its members will not represent themselves as having any authority beyond that delegated in the terms of reference.

(f) Conflict of Interest

Community-Based Public Safety Task Force members are expected to provide objective perspectives and perform functions that will not place or be seen to place them in real or perceived conflict with the mandate and scope of the task force. Community-Based Public Safety Task Force members must not have private interests that could be affected by final recommendations.

(g) Confidentiality

It is the policy of The City of Calgary to encourage clear and effective communication with all Community-Based Public Safety Task Force members, stakeholders, and members of the public. Community-Based Public Safety Task Force members will not release information obtained through the position that is not generally available to the public or use it to further private interest or those of friends, relatives, or colleagues. Any use of social media must, as with all other forms of communication meet tests of credibility, privacy, authority and accountability. Appendix 3: Task Force Members



George Chahal

Ward 5 Councillor (Task Force Chair)

Councillor George Chahal represents the most culturally diverse and economically vibrant quadrant in the City of Calgary. He was elected Ward 5 Councillor on 2016 October 16, drawing on previous campaign experience from 2007, when he lost by just 33 votes in Ward 3.

George believes that public service is an essential part of Canada's social and economic fabric. He is strongly committed to ensuring all Calgarians, regardless of background are treated with dignity and have equal access to opportunity and resources – particularly those who are vulnerable, economically unstable, and otherwise disadvantaged.

He brought forward the Community Based Public Safety Task Force in 2020 February to address an increase in violent crime.



Mickey Amery

MLA for Calgary Cross

MLA Mickey Amery was elected as the Member of the Legislative Assembly for the constituency of Calgary-Cross on 2019 April 16.

Prior to serving with the Legislative Assembly, Mr. Amery was a practicing lawyer and business owner in Calgary. He has worked on a number of cases of national significance in the areas of aboriginal law and consumer protection. He holds a bachelor's degree in political science, a bachelor's degree in economics and a Juris Doctorate degree in law.

Active in his community, he served as a director for the Learning Disability Association of Alberta and as a member on various local community boards and organizations. He and his wife have two sons and a daughter.



Gitz Crazyboy

Youth Educator/Activist/Author, Bear Clan Patrol Calgary

Gitz Crazyboy is a 36-year-old Siksikatsitapi (Blackfoot) Dene Father and youth facilitator. Born in Mohkínsstsisi (Calgary) however, he has called a few places home in the Blackfoot, Haudenosaunee and Dene Territories. Since graduating high school, Gitz began working with youth and creating youth-focused programs. Gitz's passion and purpose is helping, guiding and most importantly learning from the next generation and he has held many positions within the youth education profession.

Gitz is known for his leadership and participation in opening the Bear Clan Calgary Patrol, as well as organizing with the "Idle No More movement" which is known to be one of the largest Indigenous mobilizations in Canadian history. A storyteller to his core, he has always had a deep connection to traditional teachings ever since his mother read to him as a child. Along with writing, Gitz loves to create music and enjoys being introduced to new sounds. An avid world traveler, he has ventured to Germany, Ecuador, Guyana, Puerto Rico and sacred spaces all over North America. He has spent most of his life learning and living with different Indigenous nations all over the world and incorporates these experiences in everything he does.

Currently Gitz resides in Calgary and is actively reconnecting with his Siksikaitsitapi roots. He believes the truth of who we are can be found in the beautiful things our ancestors carried – riddles, mysteries, ceremonies, songs, medicine, love, life and laughter.



Bonita Croft

Chair, Calgary Police Commission

Bonita Croft is currently the volunteer Chair of the Calgary Police Commission (CPC). The CPC provides independent citizen oversight of the Calgary Police Service to ensure police priorities and funding reflect the safety needs of Calgarians. Chair Croft also sits on the board of directors for the Calgary Police Foundation, which is an organization dedicated to supporting safe communities by funding education and prevention programs aimed at reducing youth victimization and criminal activity. Professionally, Chair Croft is Vice-President of Legal Affairs, Corporate with Suncor Energy Inc. A leader in the areas of corporate governance, legal risk management, business ethics and anti-corruption, she has more than two decades as a lawyer and executive in global, publicly traded energy companies. Chair Croft holds a B.A. (hons) from Mount Allison University and an LL.B from Dalhousie University. She was appointed Queen's Counsel for Alberta in 2014. She is also a graduate of the Institute of Corporate Director's director education program.



Annie Cullinan

Representative of the Government of Canada

Annie Cullinan is the Regional Advisor for Western and Northern Canada to Minister Bill Blair, the federal Minister of Public Safety and Emergency Preparedness. Prior to this, she worked for Minister Blair during his time as Minister of Border Security and Organized Crime Reduction.



Dr. Harbir Singh Gill

Founder and Medical Director, NAM Centre for Holistic Recovery

Dr. Harbir Singh Gill was born and raised in Calgary and attended the University of Calgary attaining his Bachelor of Science (Honors) in biochemistry. He went on to complete medical school at the University of Alberta. He returned to Calgary to complete his residency in family medicine in 2013, where he received the Outstanding Family Medicine Resident Award.

In addition to general practice, his inpatient and outpatient practice focus has been in treating marginalized populations with a particular emphasis on the elderly, mentally ill and addicted. He has completed extra training in treating mental illness, addiction and chronic pain. He is a certified specialist in addiction medicine by both Canadian and International Societies of Addiction Medicine. Dr. Gill has made a point to focus his studies not only in diagnosing and treating illness, but also in learning the aspects of healthy living. He is also certified as a teacher of Kundalini Yoga.

Dr. Gill is a passionate advocate for the marginalized at both an individual and system level, having served in several leadership capacities, including as Site Chief of the Peter Lougheed Centre Hospitalist Program; he also serves on the physician corporation board of the Mosaic Primary Care Network.



Sherry King

Executive Director, Genesis Centre

Sherry King was born and raised in NE Calgary and joined the Genesis Centre team in 2011 prior to the completion of the Genesis Centre. Prior to that she was a key volunteer with the NECCS Board of Directors "Completing the Dream Together" Capital Campaign with one of her fondest memories being the ground-breaking ceremony of the Genesis Centre of Community Wellness shared with her middle son. Sherry has lived, worked and been heavily involved in North East Calgary her entire life. She strongly believes in giving back and the need for strong communities. She is a busy mother of 3 boys who enjoys getting out and being active especially with Geocaching, camping and hiking.



Teresa Martin

Area 2 Education Director, Calgary Board of Education

Teresa Martin oversees a group of 16 schools and also has a centralized portfolio -*Pathways to High School Success*, where she works closely with each of the high schools within the Calgary Board of Education. She has been an educator for 35 years with experience across all levels (K-12). As an educator she has worked in all quadrants of city and held a range of teaching and leadership positions. Prior to her current role, she was the principal responsible for opening Nelson Mandela High School. As principal of Nelson Mandela High School, she worked closely with parents, stakeholders, agencies and community groups to be proactive in understanding, exploring and addressing the many community concerns related to youth violence, all in an effort to make Nelson Mandela High School a safe, caring and welcoming school community. This comprehensive understanding of the complexities and challenges facing youth in an education and community context is a benefit as a member of this Community-Based Public Safety Task Force.



Jean Claude Munyezamu

President and Executive Director, Soccer without Boundaries

Jean Claude Munyezamu is originally from Rwanda and is the founder of Calgary's innovative youth program, Soccer Without Boundaries (now Umoja Community Mosaic), helping immigrant and low-income families get involved in the community through sport, music, after-school programs, summer camps and community events. He received the Queen Elizabeth II Diamond Jubilee Medal for his work and was named one of "Twenty Compelling Calgarians" for 2018. He was the recipient of the 2018 Western Legacy Award for Innovation. Jean-Claude was a finalist for a 2019 Immigrants of Distinction Award, and earlier this year received a 2021 Calgary Black Achievement Award.

Jean-Claude was a member of the Premier's Council on Culture and the Arts, and was the media and public relations contact for the Rwandan Community in Calgary. He was also a member of the organizing committee for the Commemoration of the 1994 Genocide Against the Tutsi of Rwanda.

Jean-Claude's story has appeared in Canadian Geographic Magazine, Reader's Digest, and in the travel memoir *Road Trip Rwanda*, by Giller-winning author Will Ferguson. Jean-Claude was also featured in the Canada 150 anthology *What's Your Story: A Canada 2017 Yearbook*.

He lives in Calgary with his wife and their three children.



Ritesh Narayan

Department of Economics, Justice and Policy Studies, Mount Royal University

Ritesh Narayan has been an academic in the Department of Economics Justice & Policy Studies at Mount Royal University since 2010. He is also a legal practitioner with law degrees from Canada and the UK. Ritesh is currently serving as a City Councillor in the City of Chestermere. Ritesh is also the Co-founder and President of The Canadian Association of Criminology and Legal Studies.

Ritesh's doctoral degree and academic work have largely focused on human services, primarily in crime prevention. His research area is quite diverse and not limited to social order, white-collar crime, policing, the criminal mind, sociological explanation of crime, crime prevention through environmental design, and organized crime. Wearing three different hats, Ritesh has a well-rounded knowledge of the criminal justice system, its processes, and the challenges it faces. He is well-published and is a regular contributor to various media groups where he does crime analysis.



Mayor of Calgary (Task Force ex-officio)

Mayor Naheed Nenshi, A'paistootsiipsii, was sworn in as Calgary's 36th mayor on 2010 October 25 and was re-elected in 2013 and 2017.

Prior to being elected, Mayor Nenshi was with McKinsey and Company, later forming his own business to help public, private and non-profit organizations grow. He designed policy for the Government of Alberta, helped create a Canadian strategy for The Gap, Banana Republic and Old Navy, and worked with the United Nations to determine how business can help the poorest people on the planet. He then entered academia, where he was Canada's first tenured professor in the field of nonprofit management, at Mount Royal University's Bissett School of Business.



Dr. Hieu Ngo

Faculty of Social Work, University of Calgary

Dr. Hieu Van Ngo joined the University of Calgary Faculty of Social Work as an assistant professor in 2012. He is grounded in life experience, professional practice and community leadership. Since 2001, Hieu has developed and led more than 13 collaborative projects with a total value of \$6.4 million. His scholarship and practice have focused on youth gang prevention, diversity and inclusion, non-profit management, community leadership and community-based research. Hieu is passionate about transformative learning and teaching, and has mentored a number of graduate and undergraduate students within the university and across the globe.

Hieu is the principal investigator of the Identity-Based Wraparound Intervention Project. This collaborative action research aims to develop a Canadian approach to youth gang prevention through integration of direct support to high risk and gang involved youth from immigrant families, research and evaluation, and multi-stakeholder collaboration.



Asif Rashid, Superintendent

Calgary Police Service

Superintendent Asif Rashid joined the Calgary Police Service in 2001 after working with citizens serving sentences in the community at the Alberta Justice; Calgary Attendance Centre. He served as a patrol officer in Districts 5 and 7 in a variety of capacities. After being promoted to Sergeant, Superintendent Rashid worked as a community team sergeant, and later as a General Investigations Detective for several years before being assigned as a resource officer in the Office of the Chief. Later, he worked in the Criminal Intelligence Unit before taking a role in the Real Time Operations Centre as a Duty Staff Sergeant and eventually as a Duty Inspector prior to being transferred to District 4 as the Commander. Most recently, Superintendent Rashid has worked in the Strategic Planning and Partnerships Division where he oversees the Calgary Police Service Anti-Racism Action Committee and works with partners on the Community Safety Investment Framework.

Superintendent Rashid is a graduate from the University of Calgary where he earned an undergraduate degree in Sociology with a concentration in Criminology. He also earned a certificate in Professional Business Management, also from the University of Calgary.



Anila Umar Lee Yuen

President and CEO, Centre for Newcomers

Anila Uman Lee Yuen is the President & Chief Executive Officer of the Centre for Newcomers (CFN). She has 25 years of experience in the settlement sector. Since joining CFN in 2016, with the support of a staff team 150 strong, Anila has grown the agency by \$5M, adding nationally recognized programming such as LGBTQ+ refugee supports and indigenous education for newcomers. Anila continues to strongly advocate for vulnerable persons; especially woman and children.

Amongst many volunteer positions, Anila is the Vice Chair of the Alberta Association of Immigrant Serving Agencies (AAISA), Vice Chair of Ag Media at the Calgary Stampede and President-elect at the Rotary Club Millennium in Calgary. She is also a proud member of the International Women's Forum, the Western Canada Martial Arts Academy and the Calgary Hippie Gardening Group.

Anila holds a BSc (Hons) in Psychology (Behavioural Neuroscience) and a BSc in Biological Sciences from the University of Calgary and an MBA from Keller Graduate School of Management. Appendix 4: Sample of Additional Programs and Services in Calgary

CPS2021-0540 Attachment 2

			Early Vearc	Children (0.5)	⁶⁰¹¹⁵	40(1), 12, 28)	Laton Laton
	City of Calgary	Youth Employment Centre			Ť		
lice	City of Calgary	Stay Smart Stay Safe (S4)		1			
City of Calgary / Calgary Police	Calgary Police Service	PowerPlay Hockey Program			Ť		
ary / Ca	Calgary Police Service	School Resource Officer Program			Ť		
of Calg	Calgary Police Service	Serious Habitual Offender Program (SHOP)			Ť		
City	Calgary Police Service	Prolific Offender Engagement Team (POET)					
	Calgary Police Service	Priority Prolific Offender Program (PPOP)					
ations	Calgary Bridge Foundation	The Settlement Workers in Schools (SWIS Program), Mentorship, Afterschool Program		1	Ť		
Cultural Associations	Calgary Immigrant Women's Association	Youth Program, Cross Cultural Parenting - Post Conflict Program, Immigrant Girls, Boys and More Program, In-home support	t		Ť		Å .
Cultura	Immigrant Services Calgary	Core Connections (C2), RESPECT Program, Roots Mentoring Program			Ť		
	Aboriginal Futures Career & Training Centre				ŕ		
	Awo Taan Healing Lodge Society	Youth and Family Support Program, Youth Mentorship Program			ŕ		Å .
S	Bear Clan Calgary	Street Outreach			ŕ		
Indigenous	Metis Calgary Family Services Society	Aboriginal Student Program, Ke Mama Nnanik Family Program	ţţ)•		ŕ		Å,
<u>-</u>	Miskanawah	Diamond Willow Lodge, Re:Vision Indigenous Youth Employment			ŕ		
	Native Counselling Services of Alberta	Indigenous Offender Reconciliataion Program			Ť		
	Urban Society for Aboriginal Youth (USAY)	Finding Victor VR, Indigenous Youth Employment Program, Indigenous Inclusion Program, Lunch Programs			Ť		

CPS2021-0540 Attachment 2

		Carly Vest	Children (0.5)	Vouts,	40114-1	Caront Lag
Aspen	Youth Works, Youth Matters, Enhanced Youth Wellness			ŕ		
Boys & Girls Club	Fusion, Building Youth Connections, The Unity Project, The liyika'kimaat Program		1	Ť		Å .
Calgary Achievement Centre for Youth (CACY)				Ť		
Carya	Odyssey, Starbright, Starburst, Sirius, Boost		1	Ť		
Closer to Home	Indigenous Services, Kids Konnect, Viewpoints		1	·		
Distress Centre	ConnecTeen			÷		
Distress Centre Elizabeth Fry Society Family Resource Network Hull Services	Indigenous Cultural Supports, SAGE Emotional Wellness and Employment Readiness, Prison Community Outreach					
Family Resource Network			1	Ť		Å .
Hull Services	Patch, Community Parent Education Program, Braiding the Sweetgrass		1	Ť		İ.
McMan Youth Family and Community Services Association	Wichitowin, Hope Homes, Protection of Sexually Exploited Children Act (PSECA)			Ť	•	
United Way	All In For Youth			ń		
Wood's Homes	Inglewood Opportunity Hub, Youth Culinary Arts Program (YCAP), Linking Employment Abilities and Development (LEAD)		1	Ť		
ҮМСА	Indigenous Programs, Youth Programs for New Canadians (YMAP)			Ť		
YWCA	Community Parent and School Support (COMPASS)	• (£	1			
Calgary Catholic Immigration Society	Immigrant Youth Outreach Program (IYOP), Youth Hub, Youth Connections Program, Connect Calgary - Social Recreation Program		1	Ť		
The Catholic Family Service of Calgary	Families and Schools Together (F&ST) Program, Multicultural School Support		1			Å .
SYC Mentorship	Sikh Youth Calgary Menorship Program			Ť		

Appendix 5: Stakeholder Report Back: What We Heard



Attachment 2 Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Ward 5 Councillor's Office

Stakeholder Report Back: What We Heard 2021 February 5

CPS2021-0540

Project overview

Council directed the formation of the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force (Task Force) in 2020 February to address community concerns around violence. The Task Force is a diverse group from various fields, including academic experts, community leaders, local service agencies, public education, police, as well as provincial and federal government representatives.

Meeting public safety challenges requires the entire community to come together to better understand our strengths, our challenges, and our shared commitment. Through this Task Force, we intend to listen to the community and identify both positive actions, gaps and challenges with existing programs and services. The Task Force will report back to Council with a summary of what was heard from the community and actionable recommendations.

The Task Force want to hear perspectives on public safety in Calgary. Local governments have an important role to play in developing safe and viable communities by continually developing contextually appropriate, community-driven solutions.

Engagement overview

The purpose of the public engagement was to gather input from Calgarians on how they perceive public safety in Calgary. The input will be used to inform the actionable recommendations with a focus on prevention related to community concerns around violence.

The public engagement started on 2020 November 3 and ended on 2020 December 18. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, open public feedback was only collected online through the engage website. The engage website provided the project information, timeline, links to Council documents, and contact information.

What we asked

The following is the list of questions that survey participants were asked to provide input through their responses.

- 1. What ward do you live in?
- 2. What community do you live in?
- 3. What do you think are the biggest public safety issues in your community?
- 4. Do you have any ideas to increase public safety in your community and the City of Calgary?

Other information was also asked that will not be used for recommendations, however does help us to learn for future public engagements. This included how participants heard about the project and demographic information.



CPS2021-0540 Attachment 2 Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Ward 5 Councillor's Office

Stakeholder Report Back: What We Heard 2021 February 5

Participation

The online participation had a total of 593 visitors that provided feedback, and 2,853 unique visitors to the site. The following graphic shows the overall online participation:



Views: The cumulative number of times a visitor visits the page in a site.

Visits: The number of end-user session associated with a single visitor.

Visitors: The number of unique public or end-users in a site. A visitor is only counted once.

Contributions: The total number of responses of feedback collected through the participation tools.

Contributors: The unique number of visitors who have left feedback through the participation tools.

The following table is the number of participants that shared what ward they currently live in:

Ward	Percent of Participants	Number of Participants
1	3.74%	20
2	2.06%	11
3	1.68%	9

CPS2021-0540 Attachment 2

Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Ward 5 Councillor's Office



Stakeholder Report Back: What We Heard 2021 February 5

Ward	Percent of Participants	Number of Participants
4	5.79%	31
5	7.85%	42
6	3.36%	18
7	31.21%	167
8	10.84%	58
9	6.73%	36
10	4.67%	25
11	7.66%	41
12	5.23%	28
13	4.11%	22
14	5.05%	27

What we heard

The perspectives and ideas participants shared in this report does not reflect statistically valid research, rather it provides a snapshot of participants perception at a point in time.

The largest public safety issue identified by participants was auto theft and break-ins at over 65%, followed by home break-ins at 45%. The other public safety issues that were identified by over 20% of participants were illegal drug use (30%), traffic issues (27%), and illegal drug sales (22%). Violent crime was identified less frequently by participants, however this does not imply any less of a threat or impact to residents.

When participants were asked if they had any ideas to increase public safety within their community and through the City of Calgary, the following were the main themes:

- More police presence no reductions to police and/or budget
- More social services and programs increase city economic development
- More support for block watch and community awareness initiatives
- Increased lighting and video camera surveillance
- Increased transit safety infrastructure and resources
- More traffic calming initiatives and enforcement
- Increase in crime penalties
- Improved police response times and follow-up process
- Better social infrastructure locations



Attachment 2 Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Ward 5 Councillor's Office

Stakeholder Report Back: What We Heard 2021 February 5

CPS2021-0540

The theme identified by the highest number of participants was more police presence in their community which was often accompanied by an appeal to not reduce the number of police or their budget. The second most identified theme was to develop more accessible social services and programs especially for youth, young adults, and people experiencing mental illness. Overall, this was associated with a strong city economy where residents could obtain quality work and wages. Some participants supported having additional training for police in the area of mental illness and community relations, and therefore identified both themes as important.

> For a detailed summary of the input that was provided, please see the <u>Summary of Input</u> section.

Next steps

The information gathered through the engagement will be used to report back to Council in 2021 Q2 with a summary of what was heard from the community and used to inform actionable recommendations with a focus on prevention related to community concerns around violence.

- Standing Policy Committee on Community & Protective Services 2021 April 14
- Special Meeting of Council 2021 May 3



2021 February 5

Summary of Input

Question 3. What do you think are the biggest public safety issues in your community?



Other – Main Themes***	Sample Verbatim Quote
Theft / break-in specific to garage and porch	"Garage and other outside building break-ins"
	"Prowling, looking for unsecured items in yards and on porches"
Illegal homeless camping	"Homeless illegal camping and prowling"
	"Homeless people camping in park and back lanes"

***Many participants stated the same options that were already provided in the other option, and therefore these same options were not included in the other themes above



Attachment 2 Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Ward 5 Councillor's Office

Stakeholder Report Back: What We Heard 2021 February 5

CPS2021-0540

Question 4. Do you have any ideas to increase public safety in your community or throughout the City of Calgary?

Theme	Sample Verbatim Quotes
More police presence – no reductions to police and/or budget	"More police presence in the communities. In Japan, there are police 'boxes' in each neighbourhood, so the police are always nearby. This acts as a deterrent and, if they are called, the police can be there quickly"
	"More frequent police presence and patrols"
	"Night time police presence on the problem streets. More awareness of the community liaison officers, and their positions should be a lot more public. Better mental health awareness from the police"
	"Training police officers to deal with substance abusers in a way that is evidence-based and provides meaningful change, rather than punitive punishment"
More social services and programs – increase city economic development	"More mental health clinics and support, more social workers that check up on clients"
	"Reallocate funds from police to social service agencies to decriminalize/ remove the stigma from issues re: mental health, homelessness, POC, Indigenous, LGBTQ2+, etc. Stop expecting police to be social workers so they can concentrate on catching criminals"
	"Ensure adequate funding for social programs that address violent behaviour at its root. That means: public housing, 'Police and Crisis Team,' and 'DOAP Team'"
More support for block watch and community awareness initiatives	"Set-up community watch programmes, but this must be done without putting concerned citizens in danger"
	"Give Blockwatches more training and authority in addressing public safety. Self-policing needs to be rewarded to help prevent crime"
Increased lighting and video camera surveillance	"Better street/pedestrian lighting to promote more pedestrian traffic to discourage break-in's"
	"More streetlights and community lights!! On the roads as well as communities. It's sooooo dark nowadays that almost everywhere, it's so dim and you cannot even see your perpetrator which increases chances of more violence and illegal activity"



Attachment 2 Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Ward 5 Councillor's Office

Stakeholder Report Back: What We Heard 2021 February 5

CPS2021-0540

Theme	Sample Verbatim Quotes
	"Put cameras around all the bus stops so people can be seen that are constantly breaking the glass"
Increased transit safety infrastructure and resources	"Need more peace officer presence at LRT stations and on trains"
	"Better lighting around LRT train stations"
More traffic calming initiatives and enforcement	"More enforcement of speed limits"
	"Increase traffic enforcement in playground zones at peak times"
Increase in crime penalties	"Heavier sentences for those who commit a crime"
	"Start by increasing punishment for petty crime. Criminals know they won't really get in much trouble for breaking into a car. Yet we're the ones having to replace our stuff and pay for smashed windows"
Improved police response times and follow-up process	"Faster police response to calls"
	"More thorough follow-through from CPS"
Better social infrastructure locations	"Move the Supervised Drug Consumption sites further away"
	"Move the drop in shelter and close/move the safe injection site. The river front is a dump and a hangout and the Shumir is an unusable hospital for most people and has created a dangerous neighborhood"

Appendix 6: Task Force Themes that Informed Recommendations

Action 1: Share, Monitor and Advocate

Valuable insights gained by the Task Force on the realities, gaps and proposed solutions to urban violence, including those that were outside the scope of the task force, will be consolidated and **shared** through a letter from the Task Force Chair to appropriate organizations. The City will schedule a check-in with each organization to **monitor** progress. The Chair will continue to **advocate** to the Government of Canada on issues related to urban violence.

Task Force themes:

• We heard a number of recommendations from the public engagement that fall outside the scope of the Task Force; however, we want to ensure that feedback is shared with the appropriate organizations

Action 2: Apply for and Align Funding

The City will create an action plan for funding based on criteria identified by the community and Task Force to **apply for** anticipated federal grants from Public Safety Canada. Calgary's potential share of the funding over the next five years would then finance solicited proposals from the community that **align** with the criteria to support immediate, Calgary-based community solutions specific to gang and gun violence.

Based on feedback from the community and the Task Force, criteria for the potential investments could include, but is not limited to: improved navigation of programs, barrier-free youth programs, increased supports for offenders, increased supports for youth addiction recovery, and increased programming for parents and families. The criteria could also be used to guide partnership opportunities or future applications for other funding sources as they arise.

Task Force themes:

- Additional funding to support existing programs is badly needed
- Additional funding to support new programs, strategies and initiatives to fill gaps is critical

Action 3: Coordinate and Improve Navigation and Access

The City will play a key role in system mapping, **coordinating** community stakeholders to identify and prioritize needs and opportunities related to at-risk and gang-involved populations. This work will involve identifying gaps and barriers around **navigating** gang-specific programming, improving **access** for those at-risk or involved in gang activity, and supporting advocacy-focused initiatives toward systemic change.

Task Force themes:

- Resource a position to coordinate and work with community
- Create a network for those delivering services
- Current programming that is effective should be maintained or expanded
- Initiatives need to be community-built and community-owned
- Increase support for grassroots organizations who are delivering the work in the community
- Ensure programming is culturally appropriate for the communities it is intended to serve
- Actions should be evidence-based
- Coordinate with ongoing City of Calgary initiatives such as Community Action on Mental Health and Addiction, Anti-Racism and Community Safety Investment Framework
- Create a "community-hub" or one-stop shop that improves navigation
- Youth programs should be barrier-free
- Increase supports for offenders
- Increase supports for youth addiction recovery
- Increase supports for parents and families

Appendix 7: Additional Themes for Task Force Member Agencies

Since the Task Force was initiated in 2020 February there have been several initiatives, including the Anti-Racism Action Committee, Community Action on Mental Health and Addiction Strategy and the Community Safety Investment Framework, that action key themes that were reoccurring throughout the Task Force's engagement. The Task Force identified a strong need for coordination with City initiatives on the following themes:

Anti-Racism Action Committee – City of Calgary

- Public engagement led by the Task Force showed a clear theme that racism in Calgary is both a form of violence and a cause of violence.
- Any framework implemented to support the safety of BIPOC community needs to be rooted in emancipatory principles that work towards the end of systemic racism and towards systemic liberation.
- We heard that successful efforts to end systemic racism require explicit focus on community ownership and belonging.

Community Action on Mental Health and Addiction – City of Calgary

- Public engagement led by the Task Force showed a clear connection to mental health and addictions issues in the community.
- We heard mental health is a large factor in crime and violence. Sometimes the act of violence is a reaction to mental health, sometimes it is a symptom.
- Mental health support for parents and siblings has been identified as a significant gap in offering a holistic, wrap-around approach to at-risk children and youth.
- A significant gap in addiction support for youth in Calgary, particularly for Indigenous youth, has been identified. Addiction is often a driver of gang involvement and violent crime, and prevention of future criminal involvement among at-risk youth often cannot be successful until addiction issues are addressed.

Community Safety Investment Framework – City of Calgary

- Public engagement led by the Task Force showed support for investment in alternative response models through the Community Safety Investment Framework.
- We heard suggestions that female officers should be taking the lead in domestic violence cases, and social workers should attend domestic violence calls and be the first line of communication.
- Communication should be streamlined related to domestic violence calls so that victims do not have to repeat their stories to multiple departments within the Calgary Police Service (CPS), or with other organizations.
- In instances of domestic violence, women reported being told to "call back" to CPS if anything happens; but this is often too late. Resources should be put in place for support prior to further incidents happening.
- Fund and support existing street outreach programs such as Bear Clan Patrol, Be the Change YYC, and DOAP Team.

A strength of the Task Force was the diverse perspectives and experiences that each member brought to the complex issue of gang and gun violence. The Task Force identified a number of themes that were beyond the mandate established in the Terms of Reference but are relevant to the broader discussion on community safety. These themes have been consolidated below for Task Force members to share with their individual organizations as appropriate.

Chair of the Task Force/City Council

- Explore use of Municipal Bylaw on firearms, as per the proposed changes in Bill C-21.
- Review gun control legislation in light of local and regional context.

Calgary School Boards

- Schools play a key role in prevention and early intervention for youth who may be susceptible to gang life.
- The Calgary Board of Education and the Calgary Catholic School District work with community to develop an Anti-Racism Action Plan for their organizations.
- Both school boards evaluate existing mental health supports for youth to ensure programs are culturally appropriate to meet student needs and consider expanding mental health supports for students who come from conflict zones to support integration.
- Consider offering parenting workshops, home visits and parent support programs.
- Consider piloting a Family School Liaison to support engagement between parents and students and involve community members/leaders where required to intervene.¹
- More after school programming opportunities (Homework club, STEM and sports programs) at schools.
- Advocate for expansion of the Early Development Centre (EDC) program.

Calgary Police Commission / Calgary Police Service

- Public engagement led by the Task Force showed a clear theme that racism in Calgary is both a form of violence and a cause of violence.
- CPS should take concrete steps towards anti-racism.
- Hiring and Training:
 - Ensure that the overall makeup of the Calgary Police Service workforce reflects the diversity and make-up of Calgary's population.
 - This includes hiring female officers at a more rapid speed to ensure gender parity is achieved.
 - Diversity and implicit bias training for members should be mandatory and regularly evaluated and updated.
 - Expand CPS diversity resource team training and funding to provide community outreach/ partnerships and build stronger ties with the community.
- Discipline:
 - An independent tribunal should be established for dealing with complaints against officers.²
- Programming:
 - A comprehensive assessment of all existing programs should be conducted. Programs that should be evaluated include but are not limited to: Integrated School Support Program (ISSP), Stay Smart Stay Safe (S4) Program, School Resource Officer (SRO) Program, The Multi-Agency School Support Team (MASST), The Youth at Risk Development (YARD) Program.
 - Current programming that is effective should be maintained or expanded.
 - School Resource Officer (SRO) program should include use of Civilian members to support schools.
- Data and Information Sharing:
 - Collaborate and share data between CPS and the City of Calgary related to communities and individuals affected by violence to help inform prevention, intervention and enforcement strategies.

- Consider collection of race-based data for evidence-based decision making for CPS, City and partners to help allocate and support communities disproportionality effected by urban violence.
- Support and fund Community Public Safety Audits in communities with high public safety concerns as per City of Calgary Citizen Satisfaction Survey, and CPS data showing highest levels of crime.
- Use the results of these Community Public Safety Audits to work with the City of Calgary on Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) solutions.
- Public Education:
 - Work with community groups that represent cultures that may have mistrust of police to build relationships and provide general education related to the role of police, how to report crime, etc.
 - Such education should be provided in a way that is culturally appropriate for the audience it is intended for.
- Support for offenders:
 - Following a similar model to the Edmonton Police Service, the Calgary Police Service should consider issuing letters of reference to individuals post-release who do not pose a danger to reoffend but cannot clear a criminal file off their record.
 - Discharge of criminal record (non-violent crimes) after time served, and probationary period.
- Domestic Violence
 - We heard suggestions that female officers should be taking the lead in domestic violence cases, and social workers should attend domestic violence calls and be the first line of communication.

Government of Alberta

- Funding is required to support both existing programs in the community and the expansion or creation of new programs to fill gaps.
- Provincial End Gang Life strategy as advocated by the Calgary Police Service
- Advocacy with Alberta Crown Prosecutor's Office and the Judiciary to ensure adequate resources and use of legal remedies in prosecuting predatory organized crime and gang offenders.
- Offender Support:
 - More supports are needed for offenders who have committed a crime and are released back into the community in order to prevent further offences or a return to gang life. Such supports include job support, affordable housing, basic needs such as food and clothing.
- Mental Health and Support:
 - Mental health supports to youth, as well as parents and siblings of MASST and YARD clients has been identified as a significant gap in offering a holistic, wrap-around approach to at-risk children and youth. Alberta Health Services as a partner in these programs has observed that a significant proportion of clients' parents required mental health support and struggled to access service due to a number of barriers (e.g. transportation, finances, stigma, etc.). Acknowledging that the family system plays a significant role in the overall health and well-being of children/youth, the Calgary Police Service supports a recent proposal by Alberta Health Services for a Whole Family Care approach to MASST, YARD, and ReDirect clients that would address gaps in parental mental health, build capacity among families to manage stressors and improve outcomes for clients.
- Community Based Youth Addiction Recovery Program:
 - Annual evaluation of the YARD program has continually identified a significant gap in addiction supports for youth in Calgary, particularly for Indigenous youth. Addiction is often a driver of gang involvement and violent crime, and prevention of future criminal involvement among at-risk youth often cannot be successful until addiction issues are addressed. Acknowledging this gap, the Calgary Police Service recommends that a sustainable Community-Based Youth Addiction Recovery Program be established in Calgary that includes culturally appropriate services and supports, particularly for Indigenous youth.
- Domestic Violence
 - Ensure Clare's Law is enacted to give individuals at risk of domestic violence the option to request information about an intimate partner's violent past.³

Government of Canada

- Funding is required to support both existing programs in the community and the expansion or creation of new programs to fill gaps.
- Domestic Violence
 - Redefine what assault is and what a weapon is. Overwhelmingly women told us that cars are a primary weapon of abuses. Through denying access to transportation; or threatening to crash and kill children and other loved ones.
 - Further to this, similar to sex offenders there needs to be a registry for domestic violence offenders that is easily accessible by the public and includes all of Canada, not just Calgary.
- Supporting newcomers
 - Support new Canadians as they arrive at port of entry and offer educational, and skill development opportunities supported by individual case managers.
 - Support trauma of immigration/reintegration.

Notes:

¹ This program has already been implemented.

² Under the Police Act, oversight is the responsibility of the Calgary Police Commission and Law Enforcement Review Board.

³The Disclosure to Protect Against Domestic Violence (Clare's Law) Act came into effect in Alberta on 2021 April 1.
Appendix 8: Resources Consulted

Academia Report. 2020. "Gang and Gun Violence in Calgary." Presentation to the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force: June 26, 2020.

Archway Community Services. In it Together Anti-Gang Program. https://archway.ca/program/in-it-together/.

Big Brothers Big Sisters of Calgary. MASST Referral Stream: Data from Year One. https://bbbscalgary.ca/.

Calgary Defund Coalition. Letter submitted to City Council.

Calgary Domestic Violence Collective. Written submission to the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force: November 26, 2020.

Calgary John Howard Society. https://www.cjhs.ca/our-programs/youth-programs/.

Calgary Police Foundation. Integrated School Support Program. https://cpf.cpsevents.ca/programs/integrated-school-support-project/

Calgary Police Service. 2019. Gang Strategy, Internal Document.

Calgary Police Service. Gang Suppression Team. https://www.calgary.ca/cps/community-programs-and-resources/crime-prevention/gang-suppression-team.html.

Calgary Police Service Website. Gang and Gang Activity. https://www.calgary.ca/cps/community-programs-and-resources/crime-prevention/gangs-and-gang-activity.html.

Calgary Police Service Website. Gangs – Calgary's gang strategy. https://www.calgary.ca/cps/community-programs-and-resources/crime-prevention/gangs-calgarys-gang-strategy.html.

Calgary Police Service Website. Gateway Initiative. https://www.calgary.ca/cps/youth-programs-and-resources/youth-intervention/the-gateway-initiative.html.

Calgary Police Service Website. Multi Agency School Support Team (MAAST). https://www.calgary.ca/cps/youth-programs-and-resources/youth-intervention/multi-agency-school-support-team.html.

Calgary Police Service Website. Youth at Risk Development Program (YARD). https://www.calgary.ca/cps/youth-programs-and-resources/youth-intervention/gangs-and-youth-at-risk-development-program.html.

Calgary Public Library. Written brief provided to the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force on Violence Prevention at the Calgary Public Library: December 1, 2020.

CFSEU-BC. End Gang Life. https://www.cfseu.bc.ca/end-gang-life/.

Child Development Institute. 2018. SNAP Programs. https://childdevelop.ca/snap/snap-programs/snap-boys.

City of Calgary. Calgary AfterSchool Program. https://www.calgary.ca/csps/cns/children-and-youth/calgary-afterschool/calgary-afterschool.html

City of Calgary. 2020. "Prevention Programs and Services". Presentation to the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force: June 26, 2020.

City of Surrey. 2018. Mayor's Task Force on Gang Violence Prevention: Findings and Action Steps. https://www.surrey.ca/sites/default/files/media/documents/Mayor%27sTaskForceFindingsReportFinal.pdf.

City of Surrey. SAFE Program. https://www.surrey.ca/about-surrey/community-safety/safe-program.

Copperfield Neighbourhood Watch. Written submission to the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force.

Creative Interventions. 2012. Creative Interventions Toolkit. https://www.creative-interventions.org.

Cure Violence. Community-Based Public Safety Solutions. https://cvg.org/.

Government of Alberta. Community Sentences. https://www.alberta.ca/community-sentences.aspx.

Homeboy Industries. https://homeboyindustries.org/.

Justice Sector Constellation. Written submission to the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force: November 24, 2020.

MST Services. https://www.mstservices.com/.

RAFT Calgary. http://raftcalgary.org/.

Real Me: Gang Intervention. https://www.centrefornewcomers.ca/gangintervention.

ReDirect. http://redirect.cpsevents.ca/

Soccer Without Boundaries. https://soccerwithoutboundaries.org/.

STR8 UP. https://www.str8-up.ca/.

Yo Bro | Yo Girl Youth Initiative Society. https://ybyg.ca/.

YouthLink Calgary. Gang Life Ends Here. https://youthlinkcalgary.com/gangs_education/.



Public Submission

In accordance with sections 43 through 45 of Procedure Bylaw 35M2017, the information provided may be included in the written record for Council and Council Committee meetings which are publicly available through www.calgary.ca/ph. Comments that are disrespectful or do not contain required information may not be included.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND PROTECTION OF PRIVACY ACT

Personal information provided in submissions relating to matters before Council or Council Committees is collected under the authority of Bylaw 35M2017 and Section 33(c) of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy (FOIP) Act of Alberta, and/or the Municipal Government Act (MGA) Section 230 and 636, for the purpose of receiving public participation in municipal decision-making. Your name and comments will be made publicly available in the Council agenda. If you have questions regarding the collection and use of your personal information, please contact City Clerk's Legislative Coordinator at 403-268-5861, or City Clerk's Office, 700 Macleod Trail S.E., P.O. Box 2100, Postal Station 'M' 8007, Calgary, Alberta, T2P 2M5.

✓ I have read and understand that my name and comments will be made publicly available in the Council agenda. My email address will not be included in the public record.

First name (required)	Ramandeep
Last name (required)	Jaswal
What do you want to do? (required)	Request to speak
Public hearing item (required - max 75 characters)	Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Recommendations for Action Report
Date of meeting	Apr 14, 2021
Comments - please refrain from providing personal information in this field (maximum 2500 characters)	I would like to speak to the Community-Based Public Safety Task Force Recommenda- tions for Action report, as well as its findings. As a lifelong Calgarian and someone who has both lived in the Ward 5 Communities, as well as had first hand experience with the dangers involved with violent crime, gangs, and guns, I would like to offer my per- spective to council as well as advocate for a community focused approach when it comes to this problem that has affected our city. I've had the pleasure of lending my experience to Rep. Chahal and his office, and would like to advocate for the measures mentioned in the report, as well as speak to the urgency of this issue to council (with a hope that resources and additional task forces are formed to battle this problem). Additionally, I'd like to offer the perspective of someone who had seen gang violence firsthand, and has come out of it to lead a successful life. I think my perspective may be of value when discussing this issue, and offer some perspective when trying to find a solution that involves both a community presence and preventative aim (which is the best way to tackle this issue).

2020 Calgary Combative Sports Commission Annual Report

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Standing Policy Committee on Community and Protective Services recommend that Council:

- 1. Receive the Calgary Combative Sports Commission Annual Report for the Corporate Record, and
- 2. Give three readings to the proposed amendments to the Combative Sports Commission Bylaw 53M2006.

HIGHLIGHTS

- The Calgary Combative Sports Commission is required to provide an annual report in accordance with the corporate governance framework. The 2020 Calgary Combative Sports Commission Annual Report includes a summary of activities, financial information and minor bylaw amendments to align the bylaw with industry terminology.
- What does this mean to Calgarians? Having an effective and accountable commission allows promoters to host and Calgarians to attend combative sporting events in a safe environment.
- Why does it matter? Combative sports regulation maintains safety for participants, officials, and spectators, reducing inherent risk.
- Strategic Alignment to Council's Citizen Priorities: A city of safe and inspiring neighbourhoods
- Background and Previous Council Direction are included as Attachment 1.

DISCUSSION

The Calgary Combative Sports Commission is the governing body that regulates combative sporting events within the municipal boundary. The commission is required to report a detailed financial statement, an activity summary and a proposed budget for the forthcoming year, at least once per calendar year to Council. The 2020 Calgary Combative Sports Annual Report is included in Attachment 2.

Sporting events worldwide were impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Due to provincial restrictions, only one combative sporting event was held in 2020. The Calgary Combative Sports Commission worked closely with the Government of Alberta to develop consistent standards that will ensure compliance with public health guidelines when combative sporting events are permitted to resume. The safe resumption of combative sports is expected in Step 4 of Alberta's Path Forward plan.

Proposed amendments to the Combative Sports Commission Bylaw 53M2006 will assist in creating a sustainable commission that supports progressive safety standards. Revisions include a reduction in commission membership, an increase to the commission member term length and updated terminology to align with industry standards. Proposed Combative Sports Commission Bylaw amendments are included as Attachment 3.

ISC: UNRESTRICTED CPS2021-0570 Page 2 of 2

2020 Calgary Combative Sports Commission Annual Report

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION (EXTERNAL)

- Public Engagement was undertaken
- Public Communication or Engagement was not required
- Public/Stakeholders were informed
- Stakeholder dialogue/relations were undertaken

IMPLICATIONS

Social

Not Applicable

Environmental

Not Applicable

Economic

Combative sports events support the local economy. These events trigger spectator spending and generate job opportunities.

Service and Financial Implications

No anticipated financial impact

RISK

Combative sports carry inherent risks. The City of Calgary Combative Sports Commission mitigates risks by providing oversight through the bylaw provisions for licensing, rules, monitoring of events and enforcement. Risks are further mitigated through awareness of combative sports best practices including safety processes.

Alberta is the only province in Canada with combative sports regulation at the municipal level. The absence of a provincial combative sports commission results in policies created locally and run independently of each other.

ATTACHMENTS

- 1. Previous Council Direction, Background
- 2. 2020 Calgary Combative Sports Commission Annual Report
- 3. Proposed Combative Sports Commission Bylaw 53M2006 Amendments

Department Circulation

General Manager/Director	Department	Approve/Consult/Inform
Not applicable		

Background & Previous Council Direction

The Combative Sports Commission Bylaw 53M2006 requires the City of Calgary Combative Sports Commission (CCSC) to provide an annual report in accordance with corporate governance.





Attachment 2- 2020 CCSC annual report.docx

Annual Report

Introduction

Governing Body

The Calgary Combative Sports Commission (Commission) is a volunteer body that provides governance for combative sports events in Calgary. Commission regulations maintains a safe environment for participants, officials, and spectators and provides oversight of combative sports with the authority granted under the Combative Sports Commission Bylaw 53M2006, reducing inherent risk. A cost recovery model is used to fund the Commission, where fees paid by combative sports promoters are used for cost associated with regulatory activities.

Report Overview

Sports events worldwide were impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and the combative sports industry was no exception. The 2020 Annual Report highlights commission activity, provides a breakdown of the plan for safe resumption of combative sports, a summary of the proposed bylaw amendments, a provincial commission advocacy update, and a financial overview.



Commission Activity

The Commission cancelled most of their scheduled 2020 meetings as a result of provincial health restrictions related to the COVID-19 pandemic. Because of the reduction in fees being collected, cost saving measures were implemented, and only essential work continued, including addressing stakeholder concerns, finalizing policies, and meetings with Administration or elected officials.

Update to Mixed Martial Arts Rules

Calgary's Mixed Martial Arts rules were updated to align with Association of Boxing Commissions changes. The updated rules focus on enhancing the participants safety by amending the definition of grounded fighter to disallow dangerous attacks on fighters in vulnerable positions. Calgary joins other North American commissions in making this change to ensure consistent protection for the safety of grounded fighters.

Training Meets Policy

A policy was developed to assist event promoters in understanding regulatory requirements for smaller events. The new Training Meets Policy provides clear defining qualities that mark a combative sports event as requiring Commission oversight.

Event Summary

Combative sports events that were planned for 2020 were significantly reduced due to provincial COVID-19 restrictions. Restrictions began in March 2020 and resulted in only a single event being held, five events scheduled for later in the year were cancelled.

2020 Sanctioned Event									
Event Date Venue Event Fee Event Type									
Dekada Fight Night	2020-FEB-15	Deerfoot Inn & Casino	\$6,000	Boxing					

Planning for Resumption of Combative Sports Events

In July 2020, the Government of Alberta facilitated the formation of a working group to establish uniform guidelines for the resumption of combative sports during the COVID-19 pandemic. The Alberta Minister of Culture, Multiculturalism and the Status of Women launched the group, which included representatives from the Province, the Commission, and municipal combative sports commissions throughout Alberta. Over several months the working group developed standards and protocols for combative sports resumption, including event procedures, participant travel, isolation protocols, and COVID-19 testing. These guidelines will be consistent across the province, ensuring compliance with public health guidelines to protect the safety of participants, officials, and spectators, while supporting the highest possible safety standards when combative sports events are permitted to resume. This collaboration between the province's municipal commissions, initially spearheaded as a result of the pandemic, has been recognized among the membership as a best practice and the working group will continue regular meetings to enhance information-sharing and develop unified provincial responses to various other combative sports issues.



2020 Key Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators	Target	2020	2019
Promoter application process time	<30 days	n/a*	15 days
Fighters screened against medical records from other combative sports commissions	100%	100%	100%
Fighters medical suspension report to global database	100%	100%	100%

*No new applications were received in 2020 due to COVID-19

Bylaw Amendments

Amendments to the Combative Sports Commission Bylaw provide an opportunity to better align with industry safety standards, introduce cost saving measures, and reflect the expertise required to enforce stringent combative sports safety standards. The proposed bylaw amendments will help establish a sustainable commission that supports progressive regulatory and safety standards now and in the future.

Industry Standards

The combative sports industry is rapidly evolving, making it essential that the Commission implement continual improvements to rules and regulations in alignment with industry standards. The proposed bylaw amendments provide updated processes and terminology to reflect industry advancements, including enhanced safety documentation for fighters and updated advertising standards. The officials fee schedule has been removed from the bylaw and transitioned into a policy, allowing for suitable adjustments that are in line with economic conditions.

Cost Savings

The Commission uses a cost recovery model, where regulatory activities are funded from event fees. Fluctuations in the number of events and a Commission review of its costs and operational requirements has resulted in a need to adjust the commission structure, including a reduction from seven to five committee members. As an additional cost saving measure, meetings have transitioned from a monthly schedule to as required.

Expertise

The combative sports industry has inherent risk associated with it that requires proper experience and expertise. The bylaw amendments include an increase to the Commission member term lengths and to the number of subsequent terms permitted. Term lengths have been extended from two to three years and the number of consecutive terms a member may serve has increased from three to five. These changes provide the opportunity for Commission members to attain the required knowledge and skill to develop a robust succession management plan and adequately reflect the complexity associated with ensuring safety standards.

Provincial Commission

Alberta is the only province in Canada with combative sports regulation at the municipal level. The absence of a provincial combative sports commission results in bylaws and regulations that are created locally and run independently of each other.

There has been ongoing advocacy for a provincial commission including:

- 2017 Alberta Urban Municipalities Association (AUMA) passed a resolution advocating for a provincial combative sports commission.
- **2019** Minister of Culture, Multiculturalism, and the Status of Women, Honourable Leela Aheer decided a provincial combative sports commission would not be established but permitted municipalities to create common standards.

Given other provincial and municipal priorities associated with the COVID-19 pandemic, there has been limited progress made drafting the provincial combative sport regulations that municipalities can use as a guideline. However, commissions province-wide have collectively defined consistent standards to safely reopen combative sports events with COVID-19 protocols in place. This group will continue to meet to evaluate additional opportunities to achieve cohesive policies and standards.



Revenues and Expenditures

2019 & 2020 State	Calgary Combative Sports Commission 2019 & 2020 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures (\$000) 2021 & 2022 Proposed Budget								
Revenues/Other Funding Sources:	2019 Actual	2020 Actual	2021 Proposed	2022 Proposed					
Gate Fees Draw from Contingency Fund*	\$36 \$37	\$6 \$21	\$24 \$25	\$36 \$20					
Expenditures	\$73	\$27	\$49	\$56					
Ongoing Operating Expenses									
Salary, Wage and Benefits **	25	15	27	28					
Honorarium Expenses (for attending regular Commission meetings, weigh-in and events)	32	9	11	13					
Business Expenses (parking, meeting supplies, bank service charge, conference)	11	1	5	9					
Communication and IT Services (computer, phone, printing, interpretation services)	5	2	6	6					
	\$73	\$27	\$49	\$56					
Net Surplus/(Deficit)	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0					

Note:

* As of December 31, 2020, the contingency fund balance was at \$74K.

** The 2020 decrease in event revenue and Commission expenditures is a direct result of COVID-19 restrictions.

Members

As per the Combative Sports Commission Bylaw members shall be appointed for two-year terms, expiring on the day of the Organizational Council Meeting in the year of the expiry of the member's term. Members may serve a maximum of six consecutive years. A member may serve more than six consecutive years if authorized by a two-thirds vote of Council. In alignment with the proposed bylaw amendments, the commission board member structure will transition from seven members to five members following the 2021 Organization Council Meeting.

Member	Role	Current Appointment	Expiry Year
Shirley Stunzi	Chair	2007	2021
TJ Madigan	Vice Chair	2012	2021
Marc Pesant	Commission Member	2019	2021
Allison Kavanagh	Commission Member	2013	2021
Shawn Hiron	Commission Member	2014	2021
Shane Moore	Commission Member	2017	2021
Kent Pallister	Commission Member	2020	2022
Michael Briegel	Chief Licence Inspector (non-voting)	n/a	n/a

Proposed Combative Sports Commission Bylaw 53M2006 Amendments

- 1. Bylaw 53M2006, the Combative Sports Commission Bylaw, as amended, is hereby further amended.
- 2. The definition of "amateur event" in subsection 2(1)(c) is deleted and the following is substituted:

"(c) "amateur event" means a combative sports event in which the contestants do not compete for, or receive, a purse for their participation and which is sanctioned by a governing body approved by the Commission pursuant to section 25.1;"

- 3. In the definition of "Commission" in subsection 2(1)(i) the words "City of" are deleted.
- 4. Subsection 2(1)(v.2) is deleted and the following is substituted:
 - "(v.2) Planning, Development & Assessment" includes any of the City's business units or departments dealing with property assessment, building, planning or development;"
- 5. Section 3 is deleted and the following is substituted:
 - "3. The Calgary Combative Sports Commission is hereby established."
- 6. Sections 4 and 5 are deleted and the following is substituted:

"Membership

(2)

- 4. (1) The Commission shall consist of:
 - (a) Five (5) voting members who meet the eligibility criteria set out in this Part and are appointed by resolution of Council, and
 - (b) One (1) non-voting member being the Chief License Inspector, or that person's designate.
 - Commission members may be known as Commissioners.
- 5. (1) For each member appointed by Council, their first term served shall not exceed one (1) year and for all subsequent reappointments shall not exceed three (3) years.
 - (2) Council may consider the recommendation of the Chair on the reappointment of a Commission member for subsequent terms.

Term

- (3) A Commission member may be reappointed multiple times up to a total of five terms.
- (4) Notwithstanding subsection (3), Council may reappoint a Commission member for additional terms that would take them past five terms of service if the resolution is passed by at least a two thirds majority vote by Council.
- (5) A member of the Commission may resign at any time upon written notice to the Commission.
- (6) Council may, by resolution, remove any member of the Commission at any time during his or her term.
- (7) Vacancies caused by retirement or resignation of a member may be filled by resolution of Council for the balance of that member's term and if that balance is greater than one (1) year it shall count towards the length of service of the new member."
- 7. In subsection 6(2)(c) the phrase "or manager" is deleted in both places it appears and the phrase "of a licensee" is substituted in both places.
- 8. Section 11 is renumbered subsection 11(1) and the following is added as 11(2):
 - "(2) The Commission Chair may be known as the Executive Director of the Commission."
- 9. In section 13, following subsection 13(2) the following is added:
 - "(3) The Vice-Chair may be known as the Deputy Director of the Commission."
- 10. In subsection 14(2) the word "four (4)" is deleted and "three (3)" is substituted.
- 11. Section 15 is deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted:
 - "15. (1) The Commission shall meet at the call of the Chair and not less than five (5) times per year."
 - The Chair shall receive an honorarium of \$450.00 for his or her attendance at Commission meetings and other members of the Commission shall receive an honorarium of \$200.00 for attendance at meetings."
- 12. Subsections 17(1), 17(2), and 17(4) are deleted and the following is substituted:
 - (1) Administration shall give notice of the Commission's meetings to the public by posting such notice on the Commission's website and by contacting members of the Commission in accordance with subsection (3).

(2)

- (2) The Chair shall give administration at least 5 days' notice of a meeting date to allow administration time to provide at least 48 hours' notice of a meeting to the public and to members."
- 13. The following is added after section 27 as sections 27.1 and 27.2:
 - "27.1 (1) In addition to any other provision in this Bylaw authorizing the setting of specific fees, the Commission may set the following general classes of fees:
 - (a) fees for officials, including but not limited to, doctors, physician assistants, the ring general, referees, judges, dual role referee and judges, timekeepers, knockdown timekeepers, scorekeepers, athletic inspectors, paymasters, back-up officials, and any other officials required by the Commission or a license for an event.
 - (2) Any fees set by the Commission must be published by administration on the Commission's website and may be known as the "Event and Officials Fee Schedule".
 - 27.2 The Commission may delegate any or all of the powers granted to the Commission pursuant to this Bylaw at any time to the Chair or the Vice-Chair."
- 14. In sections 27(2), 32(3), 42(1), and 42(1.1), the words "Schedule "B"" are deleted and are substituted with "the Event and Officials Fee Schedule".
- 15. In section 38(6)(b), after the phrase "Schedule "B"", the words "and the Event and Officials Fee Schedule" are added.
- 16. In 35(2)(b) the word "and" is added at the end of subsection (iv) and deleted from subsection (v).
- 17. In subsection 35(3) the word "business" is deleted.
- 18. Subsection 35(3)(a)(ii) is deleted.
- 19. Subsection 35(4) is deleted.
- 20. Subsection 36(1) is deleted and the following is substituted:

"Contestant, Judge, and Referee Licence Requirements

- 36. (1) A person must apply for a licence in writing to the Chief License Inspector to in order to be a contestant, judge, or referee at a combative sports event."
- 21. In subsections 36(2) and 36(3) a comma (",") is added after the words "contestant" and "judge".
- 22. Subsection 36(4)(d) is deleted and the following is substituted:

- "(4) To compete in a contest a person must have, in the form required by the Commission:
 - (a) a contestant license;
 - (b) medical approval;
 - (c) submitted a pre-fight form to the Commission;
 - (d) submitted a release, waiver of claim, assumption of risk, and combative sports indemnification agreement in the form required by the Commission;
 - (e) a Declaration of Health;
 - (f) Coach's Declaration; and
 - (g) any other documentation required by the event licence or the Commission."
- 23. In subsection 43(2)(b)(i) the word "named" is deleted.
- 24. Subsection 55(1)(b) is deleted and the following is substituted:
 - "(b) the presence, at all times during the course of an event, of properly identified security personnel to maintain good order;"
- 25. Subsection 55(2) is deleted in its entirety.
- 26. Section 56 is deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted:

"Advertising

- 56. (1) A person must not advertise an event unless:
 - (a) a valid licence has been issued pursuant to this Bylaw; and
 - (b) the event is sanctioned by the Commission; and
 - (c) the advertisement includes, in a readable manner, the words "Sanctioned by the Calgary Combative Sports Commission".
 - (2) A person advertising an event pursuant to subsection (1) must ensure the advertisement is updated or corrected with any changes to the contestants involved since the original advertisement was placed, posted or distributed.
 - (3) An event is sanctioned by the Commission when it is approved by a majority vote of the Commission at a meeting."

27. Section 57 is deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted:

"Contestant & Official List

- 57. A promoter must submit, for approval by the Commission, all proposed matchups of contestants, including any substitutions."
- 28. In subsection 58(2) the words "City of" are deleted from "The City of Calgary Combative Sports Commission".
- 29. In subsection 59(2)(c) the word "or" is deleted and added to the end of subsection 59(2)(d).
- 30. In subsection 59(2) the following is added as 59(2)(e):
 - "(e) where the safety, health or welfare of the Commission, Commission staff, or officials may be at risk."
- 31. Section 60(1) is deleted and the following is substituted:
 - "60. (1) A contestant licensed for an event shall appear before a designated ringside physician to determine whether the contestant is fit to participate in that event."
- 32. In SCHEDULE "A", under the headings indicated:
 - (a) after:

	<u>Ne</u>	ew Appli	cation F	<u>ee</u>	Renewal Fee			
	<u>2019</u>	<u>2020</u>	<u>2021</u>	<u>2022</u>	<u>2019</u>	<u>2020</u>	<u>2021</u>	<u>2022</u>
"Judge or Referee Licence (annual fee)	\$191	\$191	\$194	\$198	\$146	\$146	\$149	\$152"

the following is added:

<u>Ne</u>	ew Appli	cation F	<u>ee</u>		Renew	al Fee	
<u>2019</u>	<u>2020</u>	<u>2021</u>	<u>2022</u>	<u>2019</u>	<u>2020</u>	<u>2021</u>	<u>2022</u>

"Judge or Referee Licence (one day)	\$50	\$50	\$51	\$52	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a"	
--	------	------	------	------	-----	-----	-----	------	--

(b) after:

	Ne	ew Appli	cation F	ee		Renew	al Fee	
	<u>2019</u>	<u>2020</u>	<u>2021</u>	<u>2022</u>	<u>2019</u>	<u>2020</u>	<u>2021</u>	<u>2022</u>
"Contestant (annual fee)	\$191	\$191	\$194	\$198	\$146	\$146	\$149	\$152"

the following is added:

	New Application Fee					Renew	al Fee	
	<u>2019</u>	<u>2020</u>	<u>2021</u>	<u>2022</u>	<u>2019</u>	<u>2020</u>	<u>2021</u>	<u>2022</u>
"Contestant (one day)	\$50	\$50	\$51	\$52	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a"

33. **SCHEDULE "B"** is deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted:

"<u>Schedule "B"</u>

Event Fees

- 1. Deposit (section 38) \$ 1500.00
 - Facility Capacity
 Event Fee

 Less than 6,000 persons
 \$6000.00

 6,000 to 8,999 persons
 \$10,000.00

 9,000 to 11,999 persons
 \$75,000.00
- 2. Event Fee (section 39):

Note: all fees are per event, unless otherwise stated."

34. In SCHEDULE "C", under the headings indicated,

(a) the following is deleted;

Section	Offence	Specified Penalty
"56(1)	Promoter advertise prior to issuance of licence	\$300.00
56(2)	Advertise unlicensed event	\$300.00
56(3)	Fail to advertise licence number and sanctioning	\$300.00
57(1)	Fail to keep accurate contestants list on location	\$300.00
57(3)	Fail to produce contestants list on demand	\$1000.00"

(b) and the following is substituted:

Section	Offence	Specified Penalty
"56(1)	Promoter advertising prior to issuance of licence or prior to event being approved or without sanctioning language	\$300.00
56(2)	Fail to update advertisement	\$300.00"

35. This Bylaw comes into force on the day it is passed.